
DELEGAT GROUP LIMITED 

Results for announcement to the market 

Reporting Period 12 months to 30 June 2016 

Previous Reporting Period 12 months to 30 June 2015 

 

 Amount (000s) Percentage change 

Revenue from ordinary activities $254,374 10% 

Operating Profit from ordinary activities 
after tax (Operating NPAT) 

$37,038 8% 

Operating Profit from ordinary activities 
before interest, tax and depreciation 
(Operating EBITDA) 

$72,966 4% 

Reported Profit from ordinary activities 
after tax attributable to shareholders 

$53,990 66% 

Net profit attributable to shareholders $53,990 66% 

 

Audit The financial statements attached to this report have been audited and 
are not subject to a qualification.  A copy of the audit report applicable to 
the full financial statements is attached to this announcement.   

 

Comments Refer to the Executive Chairman’s Report appended.   

 
Dividends 
The Directors have declared a final dividend of 12.0 cents per share.  The dividend will be fully imputed and 
a supplementary dividend of 2.1176 cents will be paid to overseas shareholders in accordance with Listing 
Rule 7.12.7.     
 

 Cents per share Cents per share (imputed) 

Final Dividend for the year 
ended 30 June 2016 

12.0 cents 4.6667 cents 

 

Record Date 30 September 2016 

Dividend Payment Date 14 October 2016 

Net Tangible Assets per share 

 Current Year Previous corresponding year 

Net Tangible Assets per share $3.07 $2.67 

 



26 August 2016 

Executive Chairman’s Report 2016  
 

"Record global sales and profit on our 
journey to build a leading global Super 

Premium wine company." 
 

 
J I M  D E L E G A T   

E x e c u t i v e  C h a i r m a n  

 



On behalf of the Board of Directors of Delegat Group Limited, I am pleased to present its operating and 

financial results for the year ended 30 June 2016.  

Performance Highlights 

 Record global case sales of 2,411,000, up 9%.   

 Record operating NPAT of $37.0 million, up 8%. 

 Achieved sales of more than one million cases in North America for the first time.  

 Record global harvest of 35,837 tonnes from the 2016 vintage. 

 Record number of gold medals awarded in major international wine competitions. 

 Inaugural vintage for the new state-of-the-art Hawke's Bay winery. 

 

The Group presents its financial statements in accordance with the New Zealand equivalents to International 

Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).  The Directors continue to be of the view that the results reported 

under NZ IFRS do not provide adequate insight into the Group’s underlying operational performance, primarily 

due to a number of fair value adjustments that are required to be reported on.   

To better understand the operating performance, the Group has published an Operating Performance report 

and reconciliation of Operating Profit to Reported Profit.  This reconciliation eliminates from each line in the 

Statement of Financial Performance all fair value adjustments.    

 

Operating Performance 

A record operating NPAT of $37.0 million was generated compared to $34.4 million last year.  Operating EBIT 

of $61.4 million is $4.1 million higher than last year.  Operating expenses (before NZ IFRS adjustments) at 

$65.4 million are $8.3 million higher compared to last year. 

 

 

 

  



 

NZ$ millions Notes Dec 2010 Dec  

Delegat achieved Operating Revenue of $242.7 million on global case sales of 2,411,000 in the year.  

Revenue is up $30.8 million on last year primarily due to global case sales being 9% higher along with a small 

favourable impact of foreign exchange rate changes.   

The Group’s case sales performance and foreign currency rates achieved are detailed below:  

 

 

 

 

Operating Performance

2016 2015 % Change

NZ$ mill ions Actual Actual vs 2015

Total Operating Revenue ¹ 242.7                          211.9                          15%

Operating Gross Profit 2 126.8                          114.4                          11%

Operating Gross Margin 52% 54%

Operating Expenses 3
(65.4)                           (57.1)                           -15%

Operating EBIT 4 61.4                            57.3                            7%

Operating EBIT% of Revenue 25% 27%

Interest and Tax (24.4)                           (22.9)                           -7%

Operating NPAT 4 37.0                            34.4                            8%

Operating NPAT % of Revenue 15% 16%

Operating EBITDA 4 73.0                            69.8                            5%

Operating EBITDA % of Revenue 30% 33%

Notes

3 Operating Expenses are before fair value movements on derivative instruments (if losses) and share-based payments.
4 Operating EBIT, EBITDA and NPAT are before any fair value adjustments.

2 Operating Gross Profit is before the net fair value movements on biological produce (harvest adjustment) and the NZ IFRS 

adjustments excluded in Note 1.

1 Operating Revenue is before fair value movements on biological assets and derivative instruments (if gains).

Case Sales and Foreign Currency
2016 2015 % Change

Case Sales (000's) Actual Actual vs 2015

UK, Ireland, Europe 694             647             7%

North America (USA, Canada) 1,012          888             14%

Australia, NZ and Asia Pacific 705             675             4%

Total Cases 2,411          2,210          9%

Foreign Currency Rates

GB£ 0.4675 0.4739 1%

AU$ 0.9140 0.9196 1%

US$ 0.6855 0.7576 10%

CA$ 0.8796 0.9009 2%



NZ IFRS Fair Value adjustments 

In accordance with NZ IFRS the Group is required to account for certain assets at ‘fair value’ rather than at 

historic cost.  All movements in these fair values are reflected in and impact the Statement of Financial 

Performance.  The Group records adjustments in respect of three significant items at the year-end:  

 Biological Assets (Vines) – The Group’s vineyards have been revalued at the reporting date, resulting 

in a higher value attributable to Biological Assets of $7.0 million in 2016 (2015: $19.3 million);  

 Harvest Provision Release (Grapes) – Inventory is valued at market value, rather than costs incurred, 

at harvest.  Any fair value adjustment is excluded from Operating Performance for the year, by creating 

a Harvest Provision.  This Harvest Provision is then released through Cost of Sales when inventory is 

sold in subsequent years.  This represents the reversal of prior periods’ fair value adjustments in 

respect of biological produce as finished wine is sold in subsequent years. In 2016, the market value of 

the company grapes exceeded the costs incurred by $20.8 million (2015: $5.1 million).  This difference 

was primarily due to the higher yields for the 2016 vintage (up 34% year-on-year).  This write-up, less 

the impact of prior year’s vintages being sold has resulted in a net write-up of $11.8 million for the year 

(2015: write-down of $10.4 million); 

 Derivative Instruments held to hedge the Group’s foreign currency and interest rate exposure.  The 

mark-to-market movement of these instruments at balance date resulted in a fair value write-up of $4.7 

million (2015: write-down of $11.6 million);   

These together with minor adjustments in respect of share-based payments, net of taxation, amount to a write-

up of $17.0 million for the year (2015: write-down of $1.9 million). 

 

 
 
 
 

Impact of Fair Value Adjustments

2016 2015 % Change

NZ$ mill ions Actual Actual vs 2015

Operating NPAT 37.0                 34.4                 8%

Operating NPAT % of Revenue 15% 16%

NZ IFRS Fair Value Items

Biological Assets (Vines) 7.0                   19.3                 -64%

Biological Produce (Grapes) 1
11.8                 (10.4)               n/m2

Derivative Instruments 4.7                   (11.6)               n/m2

Total Fair Value Items 23.5                 (2.7)                  n/m2

Less: Tax (6.5)                  0.8                   n/m2

Fair Value Items after Tax 17.0                 (1.9)                  n/m2

Reported NPAT 54.0                 32.5                 66%

Notes

2 n/m means not meaningful.

1 Biological Produce (Grapes) is the difference between market value paid for grapes versus the cost to grow grapes. The Harvest Provision is 

reversed and only recognised when the finished wine is sold.



 

Reconciliation of Reporting to Operating Performance 

Accounting for all fair value adjustments under NZ IFRS, the Group’s reported audited financial performance 

for the year ended 30 June 2016 is reconciled to operating profit as follows: 

 

Cash Flow 

The Group generated Cash Flows from Operations of $42.5 million in the current year, which is an increase of 

$6.0 million on the previous year, primarily due to higher receipts from customers from higher case sales. A 

total of $115.5 million was paid for additional property, plant and equipment during the year, including vineyard 

and winery developments. The Group distributed $11.1 million to shareholders in dividends. Additional 

borrowings of $84.2 million were drawn down to fund the increased capital investment during the year. 

The Group having secured a $350.0 million syndicate senior debt facility in 2014 is well positioned to fund both 

its current operations as well as future capital investment in both New Zealand and Australia.  The Group's net 

debt at 30 June 2016 amounted to $282.7 million, an increase of 40% over last year. 

Dividends 

The Directors consider that the underlying operational performance and strong cash flows justify an increase in 

dividends this year. Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to advise they have approved a fully imputed 

dividend payout of 12.0 cents per share. The dividend will be paid on 14 October 2016 to Shareholders on 

record at 30 September 2016. 

 
 

Reconciliation of Reporting to Operating Performance

NZ$ mill ions
 Operating  Fair Value 

Adjustment 

 Reported  Operating  Fair Value 

Adjustment 

 Reported 

Revenue 242.7              11.7                 254.4                       211.9              19.3                 231.2              

Cost of Sales (115.9)             11.8                 (104.1)                     (97.5)               (10.4)               (107.9)             

Gross Profit 126.8              23.5                 150.3                       114.4              8.9                   123.3              

Expenses (65.4)               -                   (65.4)                        (57.1)               (11.6)               (68.7)               

EBIT 1 61.4                 23.5                 84.9                         57.3                 (2.7)                  54.6                 

Interest and Tax (24.4)               (6.5)                  (30.9)                        (22.9)               0.8                   (22.1)               

NPAT 2 37.0                 17.0                 54.0                         34.4                 (1.9)                  32.5                 

EBIT 1 61.4                 23.5                 84.9                         57.3                 (2.7)                  54.6                 

Depreciation and Amortisation 11.6                 -                   11.6                         12.5                 -                   12.5                 

EBITDA 3 73.0                 23.5                 96.5                         69.8                 (2.7)                  67.1                 

Notes
1 EBIT means earnings before interest and tax.
2 NPAT means net profit after tax.
3 EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

2016 Actual 2015 Actual



 
 
 

"Delegat is investing for growth to support its strategic goal to 
build a leading global Super Premium wine company." 

  
J I M  D E L E G A T   

E x e c u t i v e  C h a i r m a n  

Investing for Growth 

As outlined in previous Annual Reports, Delegat is investing for growth to support its strategic goal to build a 

leading global Super Premium wine company. During the year under review $113.8 million was invested in 

growth assets including construction of the Group's new state-of-the-art Hawke's Bay winery, land acquisition 

and vineyard development in New Zealand and the Barossa Valley. Delegat will invest an additional $50.8 

million in 2017 to provide earnings growth in the years ahead. This capital investment supports the Group's 

plan to grow sales to 3,401,000 cases by 2021 and will provide for further growth beyond that period. 

 

Our Great Wine People 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge our Delegat Great Wine People around the world.  

Our global team have once again shown great resolve and set new performance records on our journey to 

build a leading global Super Premium wine company.  It is inspiring to work with such a talented team who are 

committed to winning together.  

 

 

J I M  D E L E G A T   

E x e c u t i v e  C h a i r m a n  



Managing Director’s Report 2016 
 

”Key highlights of the year include an excellent 
harvest, first vintage for the new state-of-the-art 
Hawke’s Bay winery and the outstanding international 
acclaim for our wines.” 

 
G R A E M E  L O R D   

M a n a g i n g  D i r e c t o r  
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2016 was another year of record performance and continuing to build the foundations for long term 

growth.  As outlined in the Executive Chairman’s report, the Group achieved record case sales and 

Operating Net Profit After Tax. Beyond these metrics, key highlights of the year included an excellent 

harvest, first vintage for the new state-of-the-art Hawke's Bay winery and the outstanding international 

acclaim for our wines. 

 

Global Sales Performance 

The Group achieved record global case sales of 2,411,000 cases in the year, which is 9% higher than 

the previous year. For the first time the Group sold more than one million cases in North America.  

Sales continue to be well diversified by market with 42% in North America, 29% in the Australia, New 

Zealand and Asia Pacific region, and 29% in Europe including the United Kingdom.  

 

The Group has continued to invest in the development of its own in-market distribution channels to 

drive long term growth. The Group’s Sales and Marketing division has in-market sales teams in New 

Zealand, Australia, the United Kingdom, Ireland, the United States, Canada, Singapore, Japan and 

China. 

 

Australia, New Zealand and Asia Pacific 

Case sales in the Australia, New Zealand and Asia Pacific grew by 4% to 705,000 cases.  

 

In the established New Zealand and Australia markets Oyster Bay continued to perform strongly as a 

category leading Super Premium wine brand.  Significant distribution and sales growth was achieved 

with the Barossa Valley Estate brand in both markets.   

 

Continued growth was delivered in the emerging Asia and Middle East markets where the Group's 

focus remains establishing the distribution base for long term growth. 

 

North America 

The Group again delivered strong growth In North America, increasing sales volumes by 14% to a 

record 1,012,000 cases. Achieving sales in North America of more than one million cases for the first 

time represents a notable milestone on our journey to build a leading global Super Premium wine 

company.  
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In the United States, the Oyster Bay brand continued its strong growth as consumers are increasingly 

embracing elegant, cool climate wine styles.  The Group's success is underpinned by its well-

established in-market sales team working effectively with leading distributors, retailers and on 

premise venues. Oyster Bay Sauvignon Blanc is a top 5 white wine over $10 by value. During the 

year the new Barossa Valley Estate range was launched in the United States and a good base of 

distribution has been established as a platform for future growth. 

 

In Canada, sales continue to grow in all major Provinces.  Oyster Bay is a leading Super Premium 

wine brand in Canada and Barossa Valley Estate is growing in consumer awareness, distribution and 

sales.   

 

United Kingdom, Ireland and Europe 

Another year of growth was delivered in the United Kingdom, Ireland & Europe region, with sales 

volumes increasing 7% to 694,000 cases.  

In the United Kingdom Oyster Bay has maintained its Super premium category leadership position.  

Oyster Bay Sauvignon Blanc, Chardonnay and Merlot are the top selling wines above £8 in their 

respective categories irrespective of origin. Oyster Bay Pinot Noir is the top selling Pinot Noir above 

£9, whilst Oyster Bay Sparkling continues to be the number one selling sparkling wine brand above 

£10 by value (excluding Champagne).   

 

In both the United Kingdom and in Ireland, Barossa Valley Estate has established quality distribution 

with leading National Account customers and this distribution platform provides significant consumer 

reach and opportunity to grow the brand over the long term.  

 

Brands and Communications  

The Group is focussed on growing category leading Super Premium wine brands. Our goal is to 

establish both Oyster Bay and Barossa Valley Estate as two of the world’s leading Super Premium 

brands.  

Each brand is at differing stages of development across the Group's major wine markets. Marketing 

activities are specifically tailored to the needs of each market, to support distribution growth and 

consumer demand generation. To achieve this, the Group has built enduring relationships with major 

customers around the world and engages in in-store promotions and direct marketing to stimulate 

consumer trial and rate of sale. The Group also builds its brands across a diversity of media to grow 

awareness across its range of Super Premium wines and strengthen consumer connection.  
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In recognition of its growth and reputation, Oyster Bay was awarded ‘Hot Brand’ for the sixth 

consecutive year by New York’s Impact Magazine, and named ‘One of the World’s Most Admired 

Wine Brands’ by Drinks International Magazine UK.  

 

Major Awards and Accolades 

The Group was awarded a record number of gold medals and received outstanding acclaim in major 

international wine competitions, showcasing the world-class quality of its wines and significance 

within the Super Premium wine category.  

 Oyster Bay Sauvignon Blanc was awarded ‘Premium White Wine of the Year’ for the ninth year 

at the Australian Liquor Industry Awards. 

 Oyster Bay Sauvignon Blanc 2015 was awarded 90 Points and ‘Best Buy’ by Wine Enthusiast 

magazine. 

 Oyster Bay Sauvignon Blanc 2015 and Sparkling Cuvee Rose were awarded Gold Medals at 

the SAKURA Japan Women's Wine Awards. 

 Delegat Crownthorpe Terraces Chardonnay 2014 was awarded a Gold Medal at the Decanter 

World Wine Awards. 

 Delegat Crownthorpe Terraces Hawke’s Bay Merlot 2014 and Crownthorpe Terraces 

Chardonnay 2014 were awarded Gold Medals at the New Zealand International Wine Show. 

 Barossa Valley Estate Cabernet Sauvignon 2014 was awarded a Gold Medal at the Sydney 

International Wine Competition and San Francisco International Wine Competition.  
 

2016 Harvest 

The Group achieved a record global harvest of 35,837 tonnes from the 2016 vintage. The New 

Zealand harvest was 33,236 tonnes, up 33% on the low yielding 2015 vintage. The Australia harvest 

for Barossa Valley Estate was 2,601 tonnes, which is up 56% on last year. The 2016 vintage has 

delivered excellent quality in all regions with ideal weather conditions prevailing throughout the 

growing season. The Group has appropriate inventories to achieve the future sales growth goals 

outlined in this report.   

 

The inaugural vintage for the Group's new state-of-the-art winery in Hawke's Bay was a great 

success.  The winery has been specifically designed and built to produce world-class Super Premium 

Merlot, Pinot Gris and Sparkling wine. This enduring asset will support wine quality and growth for 

decades to come.   
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Sustainability  

Recognition and respect for the environment are reflected in the strong leadership role the Group 

plays in the practice and promotion of sustainable wine growing and wine production. As a leader in 

the New Zealand wine industry and as a founding member of Sustainable Winegrowing New Zealand 

(SWNZ) since 2002, the Group takes its responsibilities to respect and protect the environment very 

seriously. The Group’s New Zealand vineyards and wineries are 100% accredited by the 

independently audited SWNZ Sustainability Programme.  

  

"Delegat plans to grow sales by 41% to 3,401,000 cases over the next 
five years." 

  
 

G R A E M E  L O R D   

M a n a g i n g  D i r e c t o r  

Group Outlook 

The Group's strategic goal is to build a leading global Super Premium wine company.  The Group will 

build leading global brands from world leading regions, focusing on the wine styles for which those 

regions are internationally renowned.  Delegat plans to grow sales by 41% to 3,401,000 cases over 

the next five years.  This planned growth will be primarily driven through continued sales growth in 

North America and by growing the Barossa Valley Estate brand globally.   

In the Australia, New Zealand and Asia Pacific region, sales volume is projected to grow by 24% to 

871,000 cases by 2021.  Growth in the region will be driven by expanding distribution of products in 

the Oyster Bay range, increasing sales of Barossa Valley Estate and market development in Asia.  

Sales volume in the United Kingdom, Ireland and Europe region is planned to grow by 22% to 

849,000 cases by 2021.  The planned growth will be driven by targeted Oyster Bay distribution 

expansion, Barossa Valley Estate and the development of new markets in continental Europe. 

North America is the largest Super Premium wine market in the world and will continue to be the key 

growth region for the Group over the next five years. Delegat plans to increase sales volume in the 

region by 66% to 1,681,000 cases by 2021. The growth in the region will be driven by rising wine 

consumption per capita, consumers trading up to Super Premium wines, the increasing popularity of 

Marlborough Sauvignon Blanc and the strength of the Group's brands.  
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The Group is well positioned to grow sales and achieve sustainable earnings growth in the years 

ahead. With respect to the 2017 year, Delegat plans to grow sales by 9% to 2,632,000 cases. 

 

 

 

The Group faces risks in the form of exchange rate volatility which makes it difficult to accurately 

forecast financial performance.  Based on the prevailing exchange rates, the Group forecasts a 2017 

operating profit result in line with this year's record performance. In the event that exchange rates 

improve to levels similar to those recorded in 2016, the Group would expect operating profit growth to 

be in line with sales growth. 

 

Our People  

Our global teams embrace the exciting challenge to build a leading global Super Premium wine company every 

day. It is our people that bring our plans to life and make a difference. I wish to personally thank each of our 

Great Wine People for their commitment to Delegat and the enduring success that is being created. 

 

G R A E M E  L O R D   

M a n a g i n g  D i r e c t o r  

 

 

Case Sales (000's) 2016 Actual
2017 

Forecast

2018 

Projection

2019 

Projection

2020 

Projection

2021 

Projection

    UK, Ireland and Europe 694              725            761            783            805                  849                

    North America (USA and Canada) 1,012           1,178        1,292        1,435        1,556              1,681            

    Australia, NZ and Asia Pacific 705              729            763            797            850                  871                

Total Cases 2,411           2,632        2,816        3,015        3,211              3,401            

   Oyster Bay 1 2,354           2,515        2,652        2,800        2,946              3,116            

   Barossa Valley Estate 57                 117            164            215            265                  285                

2,411           2,632        2,816        3,015        3,211              3,401            

Foreign Exchange Rates 2 2016 Actual
2017 

Forecast

2018 

Projection

2019 

Projection

2020 

Projection

2021 

Projection

    GB£ 0.4655        0.4588      0.4588      0.4588      0.4588            0.4588          

    AU$ 0.9144        0.9303      0.9303      0.9303      0.9303            0.9303          

    US$ 0.6833        0.6737      0.6737      0.6737      0.6737            0.6737          

    CA$ 0.8843        0.8779      0.8779      0.8779      0.8779            0.8779          

1 Includes  Delegat brand in New Zealand.

2 Exchange rates  based on Spot rates  at May 2016.



Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Financial Performance

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Notes $000 $000

Revenue 3 254,374        231,152        

Profit before finance costs 4 85,016          54,630          

Finance costs 3 9,656            8,874            

Profit before income tax 75,360          45,756          

Income tax expense 16 21,370          13,233          

Profit for the Year attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company 53,990          32,523          

  

Earnings Per Share

 - Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 24 53.39            32.18            

 - Fully diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 24 53.39            32.16            

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Note $000 $000

Profit after income tax 53,990          32,523          

Other comprehensive income that may subsequently be classified to the profit and loss:

 - Translation of foreign subsidiaries 5b (2,483)          2,950            

 - Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income -               -               

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 51,507          35,473          

Comprehensive income attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company 51,507          35,473          

  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 30 June 2015 49,712          (1,214)          596               224,321        273,415        

Changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2016

Other comprehensive income

 - Translation of foreign subsidiaries -               (2,483)          -               -               (2,483)          

Total other comprehensive income -               (2,483)          -               -               (2,483)          

- Net profit for the year -               -               -               53,990          53,990          

Total comprehensive income for the year -               (2,483)          -               53,990          51,507          

Equity Transactions

 - Shares issued 103               -               (21)               -               82                 

 - Dividends paid to shareholders -               -                                  5 (11,129)        (11,124)        

 - Share-based payments expense -               -               5                   -               5                   

Balance at 30 June 2016 49,815          (3,697)          585               267,182        313,885        

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 30 June 2014 49,712          (4,164)          585               202,927        249,060        

Changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2015

Other comprehensive income

 - Translation of foreign subsidiaries -               2,950            -               -               2,950            

Total other comprehensive income -               2,950            -               -               2,950            

- Net profit for the year -               -               -               32,523          32,523          

Total  comprehensive income for the year -               2,950            -               32,523          35,473          

Equity Transactions

 - Dividends paid to shareholders -               -                                  6 (11,129)        (11,123)        

 - Share-based payments expense -               -               5                   -               5                   

Balance at 30 June 2015 49,712          (1,214)          596               224,321        273,415        

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Retained 
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Financial Position  

As at 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Notes $000 $000

Equity

Share capital 5 49,815          49,712          

Foreign currency translation reserve 5b (3,697) (1,214)

Share-based payment reserve 5b 585               596               

Retained earnings 267,182        224,321        

Total Equity 313,885        273,415        

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade payables and accruals 8 31,190          29,739          

Derivative financial instruments 9 2,397            6,587            

Income tax payable 3,402            6,422            

36,989          42,748          

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred tax liability 16 42,843          34,160          

Derivative financial instruments 9 7,057            3,302            

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10 287,148        206,768        

337,048        244,230        

Total Liabilities 374,037        286,978        

Total Equity and Liabilities 687,922        560,393        

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,425            4,782            

Trade and other receivables 11 43,746          42,942          

Derivative financial instruments 9 4,281            -               

Income tax receivable 67                 144               

Inventories 12 130,610        112,888        

183,129        160,756        

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 406,331        309,858        

Biological assets 14 94,513          86,200          

Intangible assets 15 3,692            3,066            

Deferred tax asset 16 257               513               

504,793        399,637        

Total Assets 687,922        560,393        

For, and on behalf of, the Board who authorised the issue of the financial statements on 26 August 2016.

JN Delegat, Executive Chairman GS Lord, Managing Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Note $000 $000

Operating Activities

Cash was provided from

Receipts from customers 241,354        203,699        

Interest received 29                 65                 

Income tax received 96                 316               

241,479        204,080        

Cash was applied to

Payments to suppliers and employees 150,538        133,224        

Payments to grape growers 22,381          18,181          

Net GST paid 529               186               

Interest paid 10,142          7,751            

Income tax paid 15,438          8,229            

199,028        167,571        

Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 22 42,451          36,509          

Investing Activities

Cash was provided from

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,763            1,528            

Dividends received 7                   14                 

1,770            1,542            

Cash was applied to

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 111,883        67,923          

Purchase of biological assets 1,094            1,815            

Purchase of intangible assets 226               1,666            

Capitalised interest paid 4,010            2,670            

Capitalised lease payments 44                 40                 

117,257        74,114          

Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities (115,487)      (72,572)        

Financing Activities

Cash was provided from

Proceeds from issue of shares 83                 -               

Proceeds from borrowings 97,046          47,985          

97,129          47,985          

Cash was applied to

Dividends paid to shareholders 11,124          11,123          

Repayment of borrowings 12,889          -               

Borrowing facility fees -               767               

24,013          11,890          

Net Cash Inflows from Financing Activities 73,116          36,095          

Net Increase in Cash Held 80                 32                 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,782            4,218            

Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency balances (437)             532               

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 4,425            4,782            

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Reporting Entity  

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

The financial statements presented are those of Delegat Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group). Delegat Group Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated

and domiciled in New Zealand and registered under the Companies Act 1993. The Parent shares are publicly traded on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. 

The financial statements comprise the statement of financial performance, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of financial

position, statement of cash flows, and statement of accounting policies, as well as the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements for the Group for the year ended

30 June 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 26 August 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP) and the requirements of the Companies

Act 1993 and the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP the entity is a for-profit entity. As a listed entity, the Group is

considered a Tier One entity. These financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on a historical cost basis

except for derivative financial instruments, biological assets and produce which have been measured at fair value.  

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of

assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods. 

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the current year.  

The financial statements comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS),

as applicable to the Group as a profit-oriented entity. The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Reference

NZ IAS 1 1 July 2016

NZ IAS 16 and 

NZ IAS 41

1 July 2016

NZ IAS 27 1 July 2016

* For fiscal periods beginning on or after.  

Amendments to NZ IAS 

16: Property, Plant and 

Equipment and NZ IAS 

41: Agriculture 

On 30 June 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board 

(IASB) issued Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to NZ IAS 

16 and NZ IAS 41) which changed the accounting requirements for 

biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants (e.g. 

vines).  

Bearer plants will now be within the scope of NZ IAS 16 and will 

be subject to all of the requirements therein.  This includes the 

ability to choose between the cost model and revaluation model for 

subsequent measurement and the requirement to depreciate the 

bearer plants over their estimated useful lives under either model.

Agricultural produce growing on bearer plants (e.g. grapes) will 

remain within the scope of NZ IAS 41.

The Group has significant biological assets (e.g. 

vines) assets that following the implementation of 

this change will fall within the scope of NZ IAS 

16 rather than NZ IAS 41.  Under NZ IAS 41 the 

Group's biological assets have been valued at fair 

value.  

Under NZ IAS 16 the Group has chosen to adopt 

the cost model to value their biological assets from 

1 July 2016 and will apply the fully retrospective 

transition provisions. This means that all fair value 

increments previously recognised will be reversed 

and the Group's biological assets will be 

depreciated from their original planting dates.  

This will result in a reduction in the value of the 

Group's biological assets of $48 million with a 

corresponding reduction in the Group's deferred 

tax liability of $14 million and shareholders' equity 

of $34 million. Based on the biological assets 

planted at 30 June 2016, there will be $1.2 million 

of depreciation on vines included within growing 

costs for the year ended 30 June 2017 and future 

years.

Disclosure Initiative 

(Amendments to NZ 

IAS 1)

The amendments clarify existing NZ IAS 1 requirements that relate 

to materiality, order of the notes, subtotals, accounting policies and 

disaggregation, as follows:

- Materiality and aggregation - clarifies that an entity when 

aggregating information in the financial statements shall not reduce 

the understandability of its financial statements by obscuring 

material information with immaterial information or by aggregating 

material items that have different natures or functions.  

- Order of the notes - requires that entities present notes in a 

systematic manner, considering the effect on the understandability 

and comparability of its financial statements, and includes further 

examples of different systematic order of notes approaches that 

could be adopted.  

- Accounting policies - clarifies that while an entity is required to 

disclose its significant accounting policies, these are no longer 

required to be included in a summary of significant accounting 

policies, and each entity should include accounting policies where 

they consider users of its financial statements would expect them to 

be disclosed for that type of entity.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this 

standard on the presentation of the Group's 

financial statements from 1 July 2016.  The Group 

does not anticipate that the amendments to NZ 

IAS 1 will significantly change the information 

disclosed in the financial statements but may alter 

the order of the notes and where accounting 

policies are included.

Amendments to NZ IAS 

27: Separate Financial 

Statements

The amendments require an entity preparing separate financial 

statements to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 

and associates either at cost, in accordance with NZ IFRS 9 

Financial Instruments, or using the equity method. Prior to these 

amendments an entity could only account for investments in 

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at cost.

The Group is only required to prepare separate 

financial statements for Delegat Australia Pty 

Limited, Delegat Europe Limited, Barossa Valley 

Estate Pty Limited, Delegat (Singapore) Pte. 

Limited and Delegat (Shanghai) Trading Co. 

Limited. Only Delegat (Singapore) Pte. Limited 

has an investment in a subsidiary, in Delegat 

(Shanghai) Trading Co. Limited, which Delegat 

(Singapore) Pte. Limited will continue to 

recognise at cost. Therefore these amendments 

will have no impact on the Group.

Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended, but are not yet effective, have not been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ending 30

June 2016.  These are outlined in the following table:  

Group 

Application 

Date *Title Summary Impact on Group
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Reference

NZ IFRS 15 1 July 2018

* For fiscal periods beginning on or after.  

NZ IFRS 9 

(2014)

1 July 2018 Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are 

measured at amortised cost with the exception of 

foreign currency forward exchange contracts and 

options or interest rate swaps which are held at 

fair value. The classification and measurement of 

these will remain the same under NZ IFRS 9. 

However for those financial liabilities held at fair 

value, the Group will be required to separate the 

fair value movement that relates to changes in the 

Group's credit risk and record this through Other 

Comprehensive Income rather than through the 

Statement of Financial Performance where the 

remaining change in value will be recorded. 

The Group does not currently apply hedge 

accounting so the changes are expected to have 

limited impact on the Group.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the 

completed version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (to replace NZ 

IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement), 

bringing together the classification and measurement, impairment 

and hedge accounting phases of the IASB's project to replace IAS 

39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all 

previous versions of IFRS 9.

The completed version of NZ IFRS 9 includes the following 

revisions:

a) NZ IFRS 9 (2009): The revised standard requires that financial 

assets be classified on the basis of the entity's business model for 

managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 

characteristics of the financial asset. Financial assets are initially 

recognised at fair value - or if the business model accounting 

supports it - cost, adjusted for transaction costs and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost.  Financial assets can only be classified 

as amortised cost if (a) the contractual cash flows from the 

instrument represent principal and interest and (b) the entity's 

purpose for holding the instrument is to collect the contractual cash 

flows;

Group 

Application 

Date *Title Summary Impact on Group

NZ IFRS 15: Revenue 

from Contracts with 

Customers

NZ IFRS 15 establishes principles for reporting useful information 

to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing 

and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's 

contracts with customers.  NZ IFRS 15 supersedes NZ IAS 18 

Revenue.  

The core principle of NZ IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises 

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 

entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or 

services.  

An entity will recognise revenue in accordance with that core 

principle by applying the following steps:   

a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;  

b) Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

c) Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance 

obligations within the contract;

e) Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 

performance obligation.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of 

the changes in NZ IFRS 15 on its accounting 

policy for the recognition of revenue. Upon 

adoption of NZ IFRS 15, some selling, marketing 

and promotion expenses may be required to be 

deducted from revenue. Management is currently 

assessing the impact of the potential 

reclassification that may be required.

b) NZ IFRS 9 (2010): In these amendments the existing 

requirements for the classification of financial liabilities and the 

ability to use the fair value option from NZ IAS 39 have been 

retained.  However, where the fair value option is used for financial 

liabilities the change in fair value is required to be accounted for as 

follows:

- the change attributable to the entity's own credit risk is to be 

presented in Other Comprehensive Income;

- the remaining change is presented in the Statement of Financial 

Performance; and

- if this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the 

Statement of Financial Performance, the effect of changes in the 

entity's credit risk are also presented in the Statement of Financial 

Performance; and

c) NZ IFRS 9 (2013):

- New hedge accounting requirements including changes to hedge 

effectiveness testing, treatment of hedging costs, risk components 

that can be hedged and disclosures;

- Entities may elect to apply only the accounting for gains and 

losses from own credit risk without applying the other requirements 

of NZ IFRS 9 at the same time.

NZ IFRS 9: Financial 

Instruments
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Reference

NZ IFRS 16 1 July 2019NZ IFRS 16: Leases NZ IFRS 16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single 

on-balance sheet model (subject to certain exemptions) in a similar 

way to finance leases under NZ IAS 17: Leases. Lessees will be 

required to recognise a liability to pay rentals with a corresponding 

asset, and recognise interest expense and depreciation separately. 

Reassessment of certain key considerations (e.g., lease term, 

variable rents based on an index or rate, discount rate) by the lessee 

is required upon certain events. Lessor accounting is substantially 

the same as lessor accounting under NZ IAS 17’s dual classification 

approach.

The Group has significant operating lease 

commitments including long-term land leases, 

which allow the Group to access prime viticultural 

land in Marlborough, Hawke's Bay, and the 

Barossa Valley, which will fall under NZ IFRS 16.  

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of 

the changes in NZ IFRS 16 on its accounting 

policy for the recognition of leases. The Group 

will be required to recognise a 'Right-of-use Asset' 

and a corresponding 'Finance Liability' in the 

statement of financial position for all of these 

leases. This change will also affect the profile of 

expenses (interest and depreciation) and the 

timing of these expenses relative to the lease 

payments which are currently recognised.

* For fiscal periods beginning on or after.  

Group 

Application 

Date *Title Summary Impact on Group
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Basis of Consolidation

Business Combinations

Goodwill

Segment Reporting

Revenue

i) Sale of Goods

ii) Interest Revenue

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the 

interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 

financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The specific accounting policies that materially affect the measurement of the statement of financial performance, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of

changes in equity, statement of financial position and statement of cash flows are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015. 

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its investment in the

entity, and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.  Specifically, the Group controls an entity if and only if the Group has:  

- Power over the entity (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity, and;

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.  

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent, using consistent accounting policies. The effects of intercompany

transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the

Group. The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting as noted below. 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 

the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria have been applied to each individual classification of revenue:

The primary source of revenue earned by the Group is through providing wine to third party retailers and distributors. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and 

rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership 

are considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of goods to the customer.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or

groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to

those units or group of units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored

for internal management purposes and is not larger than a segment based on the Group's accounting policy in the determination of operating segments.

Impairment losses recognised on goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value of

the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. Cost is measured as

the fair value of the assets given, shares issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Where equity instruments are issued in a business combination, the fair

value of the instruments is their published market price at the date of the exchange unless, in rare circumstances, it can be demonstrated that the published price at the date of

exchange is an unreliable measure of fair value. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly within equity.

An operating segment is a reportable segment if the operating segment engages in business activities in which it may earn revenues and incur expenses whose operating results 

are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker and for which discrete financial information is available.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates. When the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. When goodwill forms part

of a cash-generating unit and an operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the

operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this manner is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed

of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

Except for non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale (which are measured at fair value less costs to sell), all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and

contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values as at acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling

interests. The excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the

cost of the acquisition is less than the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary, the difference is recognised as a gain in the statement of

financial performance, but only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net assets acquired.

Where settlement of any part of the consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to the present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate

used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which similar borrowings could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and

conditions.
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Revenue (continued)

iii) Dividends

iv) Fair Value of Grape Vines

v) Government Grants

Income Tax

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Foreign Currencies

i) Functional and Presentation Currency

ii) Transactions and Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

i) Finished Goods

ii) Growing Costs where the Group maintains a Beneficial Ownership in Vine Stock

Harvesting of the grape crop is ordinarily performed in late March or early April. Costs incurred in growing the grapes, including any applicable harvest costs, are initially 

allocated into the cost of inventory as part of the total costs to acquire and grow the agricultural produce. At the point of harvest, a fair value adjustment is made so that the cost 

per tonne is adjusted to fair value in accordance with NZ IAS 41: Agriculture and NZ IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement. The fair value of grapes is determined by reference to 

market prices for grapes in the local area, at the time of harvest. Any difference between cost and fair value is included within the statement of financial performance as cost of 

sales. At the point of harvest, management labour and vineyard lease costs have been separately identified from the pool of growing costs and do not form part of the difference 

between cost and fair value. These costs are expensed to the statement of financial performance as cost of sales.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured as the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities based on the 

current period's taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value less estimated point of sale costs of grape vines are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the year they arise.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with any conditions attaching to it, and that the grant will be received. When 

these conditions are met, grants are recorded in External Sales.

The statement of financial performance, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows have been prepared so that all 

components are stated net of GST.  All items in the statement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include GST 

invoiced.

The presentation currency of the Group is the New Zealand Dollar. Each subsidiary company in the Group determines its own functional currency and uses that functional 

currency for its individual financial statements. Subsidiary companies with a different functional currency than that of the Group are translated through converting all reported 

assets and liabilities at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet, while income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Any resulting 

exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and 

liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Trade receivables generally have 30 to 90 day terms, and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 

less an allowance for any uncollectable amounts. Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectable are written off 

when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debt.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costs of finished goods sold are assigned on a weighted average cost basis. Included within the cost of 

inventory is the fair value of the grapes (agricultural produce) at the time the grapes are harvested. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.  Assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank, and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that 

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and 

cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within interest-bearing loans and 

borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Deferred income tax is provided for all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purposes. Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 

be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profit will be available to allow all, or part of, the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax 

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the statement of financial performance. 
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Inventories (continued)

iii) Growing Costs where the Group is not the Beneficial Owner of Vine Stock

Land and Land Improvements

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation

Buildings 10-50 years

Plant and Equipment 3-50 years

Vineyard Improvements 3-50 years

Impairment

Biological Assets (Grape Vines) and Produce (Grapes)

Intangible Assets

Grape vines are measured at their fair value. The fair value of vineyards, including land, grape vines and other vineyard infrastructure, is determined by an independent valuer, 

using the present value of expected net cash flows from the vineyards, discounted using a pre-tax market determined rate. The fair value of land and other vineyard infrastructure 

is deducted from the fair value of vineyards to determine the fair value of grape vines. Changes in fair value, less estimated point of sale costs of grape vines, are recognised in 

the statement of financial performance in the year in which they arise. 

Grapes are measured at fair value at the time of harvest. The fair value of grapes is determined by reference to market prices for grapes for that local area at the time of harvest.

The fair value becomes the basis of cost when accounting for inventories.

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment charge is recognised

for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value, less costs to sell, and value in

use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are valued at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.  The cost of the intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the 

date of acquisition.  Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  

Depreciation on vineyard improvements commences when the vineyard is considered to be in commercial production, which is when the vineyard has produced approximately

60% of the expected yield at full production, ordinarily a period of three years after the planting of vines. The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at the end of each financial year.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Such costs include the cost of replacing parts 

that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred. The cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is the value of the consideration given to 

acquire the assets and the value of other directly attributable costs, which have been incurred in bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for their intended 

service.  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of all materials used in the construction, direct labour on the project, operating lease and financing costs that are 

directly attributable to the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads. Costs cease to be capitalised when the asset is ready for productive use. In 

respect of vineyard improvements and capitalised vineyard leases, capitalisation of costs continue until the vineyards are ready for productive use, which is when the vineyard 

has produced approximately 60% of expected yield at full production, ordinarily a period of three years after the planting of vines.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, other than land which has an indefinite economic life and hence not depreciated, is charged on a straight-line basis so as to write

off the assets to their expected residual value over their estimated useful lives.  The estimated useful lives are as follows:

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.  Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.  Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for 

impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit (CGU) level.  The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite 

life continues to be supportable.  If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.  

The Group is party to long-term vineyard operating lease contracts where the Group is able to access, harvest and grow agricultural produce, however does not maintain the 

beneficial ownership in the underlying biological asset. Vineyard costs that are incurred subsequent to harvest up to balance sheet date do not qualify as agricultural produce or 

biological assets under NZ IAS 41: Agriculture and are accounted under NZ IAS 2: Inventories, as inventories. Where growing costs are incurred and the Group is not the 

beneficial owner of the biological assets, growing costs are reported at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with NZ IAS 2: Inventories.

At the point of harvest, the harvest of grapes qualify as agricultural produce under NZ IAS 41: Agriculture and are recorded at fair value at that date. The fair value of grapes is 

determined by reference to market prices for grapes in the local area, at the time of harvest. Any difference between cost and fair value is included within the statement of 

financial performance as cost of sales. At the point of harvest, management labour and vineyard lease costs have been separately identified from the pool of growing costs and 

do not form part of the difference between cost and fair value. These costs are expensed to the statement of financial performance as cost of sales.

Land and Land Improvement assets are measured at cost and are not subject to depreciation.  
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Leased Assets 

Contributed Equity

Financial Instruments

i) Trade and Other Payables

ii) Trade and Other Receivables

iii) Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings

iv) Derivative Financial Instruments

Borrowing Costs 

Provisions and Employee Leave Benefits

Post-employment Benefits

Provisions are measured as the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present value of the obligation at the balance sheet date. If 

the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 

increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 

recognised in respect of the employee's services up to the reporting date. They are measured as the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for 

non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and is measured at the rates paid or payable. 

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred except when they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. When this is the case, they are

capitalised as part of that asset. Once the asset is put into productive use, capitalisation of the borrowing costs ceases. 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and options to economically hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations

and interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is

entered into, and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at balance date. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the

statement of financial performance. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar

maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. 

The Group makes regular contributions to various defined contribution pension plans. Included within the statement of financial performance are amounts paid and payable by 

the Group into these pension plans, net of any related tax rebates. The Group does not make available or make contributions to any defined benefit superannuation plans.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

The Group's own equity instruments, which are reacquired for later use in employee share-based payment arrangements, are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised

in the statement of financial performance on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position include trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Each of these

financial instruments is classed into one of the following categories:

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and then carried at amortised cost, and due to their short-term nature, they are not discounted. They represent

liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments

in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.  The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.  

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and then carried at amortised cost, and due to their short-term nature, they are not discounted. The amounts are

unsecured and are usually received within 30 to 90 days from initial recognition.

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the 

arrangement is dependent upon the use of the specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.  

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease costs that are

directly attributable to bringing new vineyards to working condition for their intended use are capitalised up until the time the vineyards become commercially productive. The

accumulated amount is then amortised over the remaining lease term.  All other operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the periods the amounts are payable.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-

bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield

related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. 

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the 

fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease 

liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance. Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the 

Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Share-based Payment Transactions

Earnings per Share

- other non-discretionary changes in revenues and expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential ordinary shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares.

- costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;

- the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses;

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. 

However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and the new award are treated 

as if they were a modification to the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. 

The dilutive effects, if any, of any outstanding options are reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share is calculated as Group profit after income tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity (other

than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue. 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as Group profit after income tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Parent adjusted for:

The Group provides benefits to selected employees in the form of share-based payments, whereby the Group makes available interest-free loan facilities for those employees to 

subscribe for shares at a fixed price for a specified time period. The Group's recourse over the loan is limited to the lesser of the market value of the shares and the outstanding 

loan balance. Provisions of the loan agreement allow any potential upside of the shares to accrue to the employee while the downside risk is limited as the Directors have the 

ability to cancel or alter the underlying loan agreement. In substance these arrangements represent equity-settled share-based payments and are accounted for as noted below.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is 

determined through the use of an option pricing model on grant date. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than those 

conditions which are linked to market conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which performance and/or service conditions are 

fulfilled (the vesting period), ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting date).

At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative charge to the statement of financial performance is the product of the fair value of the award at grant date and the 

best estimate of the number of awards that will vest, taking into account such factors as the likelihood of employee turnover during the vesting period and the likelihood of non-

market performance conditions being met and the expired portion of the option.

The charge to the statement of financial performance for the period is the cumulative amount as noted above, less amounts already charged in previous periods. There is a 

corresponding credit to equity.

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest than what were originally anticipated to do so. Any award 

subject to a market condition is considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition is fulfilled,  provided that all other conditions are satisfied.

If the terms of the equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any 

modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification. 
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries  

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Post-Tax 

Profits
Equity

Post-Tax 

Profits
Equity

Group $000 $000 $000 $000

NZD/USD +5% 554              554             918             918                

NZD/USD -5% (618)             (618)            (1,168)         (1,168)            

NZD/GBP +5% 950              950             2,051          2,051             

NZD/GBP -5% (1,013)          (1,013)         (1,043)         (1,043)            

NZD/AUD +5% 928              928             139             139                

NZD/AUD -5% (1,014)          (1,014)         (169)            (169)               

NZD/CAD +5% 49                49               146             146                

NZD/CAD -5% (50)               (50)              (321)            (321)               

NZD/EUR +5% (156)             (156)            (73)              (73)                

NZD/EUR -5% 173              173             81               81                  

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise bank loans and overdrafts, trade payables and accruals. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise funding for the Group's ongoing

operations. The Group also has financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash which arise directly from its operations.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is counterparty to derivative financial instruments principally being foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options and interest rate swaps. The purpose of entering into foreign 

currency forward exchange contracts and options is to manage currency risk primarily arising from foreign denominated trade receivables. Interest rate swaps are entered into with the aim of

mitigating interest rate risk to movements on floating rate debt facilities. 

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Each of the main operational risks are reviewed by the

Treasury Management Committee (TMC) and their recommendations are provided to the Board of Directors. The composition of the TMC includes the Managing Director (or Alternate), Chief

Financial Officer, Corporate Financial Planning Analyst and Independent Treasury Advisors. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below. Board

approval is required for any movement outside policy.

The net assets employed through subsidiary companies based overseas exposes the Group to foreign currency risk as a result of changes in the GBP/NZD, AUD/NZD, USD/NZD, EUR/NZD,

CAD/NZD, SGD/NZD, JPY/NZD and CNY/NZD exchange rates. The Group also has foreign currency risk resulting from sales of product in a currency which is other than that of the New

Zealand Dollar. Profits from each export region are repatriated and reported in New Zealand Dollars and the Group is exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Impact on 2016 Reported Impact on 2015 Reported 

To minimise foreign currency risk the Group enters into forward exchange contracts and options for foreign denominated sales at levels which are considered to be highly probable. The Group

attempts to maintain foreign currency cover of between 75% to 100% of highly probable sales in one to three months, 50% to 75% for highly probable sales in four to six months, 25% to 50% for

highly probable sales in seven to 12 months, 0% to 50% for sales between 13 to 18 months and 0% to 25% for sales thereafter. The Group has the option of increasing foreign exchange cover to

100% for any time period upon approval by the Board of Directors.

At 30 June 2016, had the New Zealand Dollar moved as illustrated in the following table with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

The above table calculates the impact of a change in foreign exchange rates on closing equity and post-tax profits of the Group, as a result of the Group being counterparty to transactions which are

foreign currency denominated. Foreign currency denominated balances include trade and other receivables, trade payables and accruals, loans and borrowings, cash on hand and unsettled foreign

exchange contracts that exist at balance sheet date. The net foreign currency exposure is determined in aggregate and the impact on post-tax profits determined as a result of a +/- 5% movement in

foreign exchange rates.

When the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of being contractually committed to purchase capital items from an overseas supplier and such expenditure is expected to exceed

$200,000, the Group's policy is to ensure the foreign currency exposure is covered in full. Any capital expenditure between $100,000 and $200,000 is to be covered at the discretion of the TMC,

based on such factors as timing for payment and expected volatility of currency markets.  It is the Group's policy that in no instances is trading for speculative purposes permitted. 

The impact upon the Group's equity balance is derived through determining the impact on post-tax profits as noted above.  
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Post-Tax 

Profits
Equity

Post-Tax 

Profits
Equity

Group $000 $000 $000 $000

2.00% Increase - 200 basis points (2015: 2.00% Increase - 200 basis points) 5,126           5,126          9,148          9,148             

0.25% Decrease - 25 basis points (2015: 0.25% Decrease - 25 basis points) (641)             (641)            (1,131)         (1,131)            

Facility Limit

Drawn At 

Balance Sheet 

Date

< 1 year 1 to 2 years > 2 years

30 June 2016 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Working capital facility 65,000         50,200             1,750          1,750          53,033           

Term facility (Multi-Currency) 130,000       85,094             2,902          2,902          89,458           

Forward Start Facility 100,000       100,000           5,340          5,340          108,032         

Term facility (AUD) 52,400         52,400             1,865          1,865          55,206           

Derivative financial instruments N/A N/A 53,082         1,994          5,063             

Trade payables and accruals N/A 30,842             30,842         -              -                

Financial guarantee contracts N/A N/A 1,338          -              -                

347,400       318,536           97,119         13,851         310,792         

Liquidity risk is the risk that an unforeseen event or miscalculation in the required liquidity level may lead to the Group being unable to meet its day to day funding obligations. To minimise

liquidity risk the Group's policy is to maintain committed funding facilities at a minimum of 105% of the projected peak debt level over the next 12 months (excluding the cash requirements for any

business combinations). 

Included in the table above are financial guarantees which are valued at their highest possible amount that can be called at balance date. For each individual guarantee if the obligation at balance

date is lower than the maximum amount callable under the guarantee then the lower value has been included. The guarantees can be called and in favour of the beneficiary if certain acts of non-

performance occur. The Directors consider the likelihood of each financial guarantee being called remote.

A General Security Agreement exists in favour of Westpac New Zealand Limited, Bank of New Zealand, and ASB Bank Limited to secure amounts loaned to the Group. The General Security

Agreement covers the existing and future cassets of Delegat Group Limited, Delegat Limited, Delegat Australia Pty Limited, and Barossa Valley Estate Pty Limited. The amount of the guarantee in

respect of the banking facilities is not included in the above table and is the lower value of the net assets of the Group and the aggregate of the loans advanced at balance date. Loan facilities are

disclosed in Note 10.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term and short-term debt obligations with interest payable based on floating rates of

interest. Interest rate risk is monitored by the TMC on an ongoing basis. The recommendation by the TMC to enter into fixed or variable rate debt facilities and decisions to retire existing debt

instruments is made after consideration of the economic indicators impacting upon the overnight cash rate, which influences the rates of interest charged by financial institutions. All funding

facilities recommended by the TMC must be approved by the Board of Directors.

Interest Rate Risk

The table below presents all contractual payments which the Group is legally obliged to make and includes all future interest payments on interest-bearing facilities. The interest cost has been

estimated by maintaining the current principal balance and interest rates that exist at balance sheet date. The table also includes the New Zealand Dollar equivalent for the foreign currency amounts,

which are to be delivered to fulfil obligations under foreign currency contracts. The table below excludes amounts required to fund operating lease commitments as these are disclosed in Note 18.

Facility Type

As at 30 June 2016

The key assumptions which impact upon the values presented in the above table are the following:

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

Impact on 2015 Reported

The Group manages interest rate risk through maintaining a mix of debt instruments having variable and fixed interest rates. The Group's policy is to maintain a level of fixed debt facilities between

40% to 100% of core debt for a period of one year, between 30% to 80% of projected core debt for periods of one to three years, and 15% to 60% of projected core debt facilities for three to five

years. Board approval is required for any fixed rate cover that extends beyond five years. 

The Group also manages interest rate risk through being counterparty to a series of interest rate swaps. The Group agrees to settle or has the option to exchange, at specified dates, the difference

between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These are discussed in Note 9: Derivative Financial Instruments. 

The table below demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the Group's post-tax profits and equity:

Impact on 2016 Reported

- Interest payable on bank debt is based upon the BKBM plus a margin. The margin is dependent upon the Group achieving certain financial covenants and the margin ranges from 0.84% to 1.23%.

The analysis assumes that the margin and principal is held constant at the same rate as at the balance sheet date with the sensitivity calculating the effect on interest expense of movements in the

BKBM rate. The analysis excludes any future interest that would be capitalised as part of long-term assets.

- The impact upon the fair value of the interest rate swaps is based upon the differential in rates between the Group paying a fixed rate of interest and receiving the floating New Zealand Bank Bill

Rate (BKBM) multiplied by the nominal amount under the swap agreement up until maturity.

- Cash and cash equivalents include deposits on call which are at floating interest rates. The estimated impact upon interest revenues from these sources is based upon amounts held on deposit

remaining at consistent levels as reported at the balance sheet date. For foreign denominated deposits the impact on foreign exchange is based on the conversion rate existing at balance sheet date.

- Included in the above table is the change in fair value of interest rate swaps which results from changes in the floating interest rate. 

-  Account balances that are trade receivables or trade payables are generally on 30 to 90 day terms and are non-interest bearing and are not subject to interest rate risk.

The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. The maximum exposure to the carrying amount of receivable balances is disclosed in Note 11. The Group does not have any significant

concentrations of credit risk.
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Facility Type Facility Limit

Drawn At 

Balance Sheet 

Date

< 1 year 1 to 2 years > 2 years

30 June 2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Working capital facility 65,000         44,200             2,032          2,032          49,289           

Term facility (Multi-Currency) 130,000       130,000           4,589          4,589          141,491         

Term facility (AUD) 56,376         33,206             1,351          1,351          36,590           

Derivative financial instruments N/A N/A 63,555         5,419          1,909             

Trade payables and accruals N/A 29,207             29,207         -              -                

Financial guarantee contracts N/A N/A 1,260          -              -                

251,376       236,613           101,994       13,391         229,279         

2016 2015

$000 $000

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables at amortised cost 46,678           46,576             

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss              4,281                      -   

           50,959              46,576 

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 313,993         231,917           

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 9,454             9,889               

          323,447            241,806 

30 June 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets $000 $000 $000 $000

Foreign currency forward exchange option contracts -                  1,295           -                  1,295           

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts -                  2,986           -                  2,986           

-                  4,281           -                  4,281           

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Liabilities $000 $000 $000 $000

Interest rate swap contracts -                  9,454           -                  9,454           

-                  9,454           -                  9,454           

30 June 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Liabilities $000 $000 $000 $000

Foreign currency forward exchange option contracts -                  1,375           -                  1,375           

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts -                  4,072           -                  4,072           

Interest rate swap contracts -                  4,442           -                  4,442           

-                  9,889           -                  9,889           

The Group maintains credit facilities at a level sufficient to fund the Group's working capital during the period between cash expenditure and cash inflow.   

The fair value of financial instruments held at balance date that are not traded on an active market include foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options and net settled interest rate swap

contracts. The fair values are derived through valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If

all significant inputs come from observable market data the instrument is included in Level 2 of the hierarchy. 

Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices);

Level 3 - the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.  

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments is presented in the previous table. For financial instruments measured at fair value further disclosure is required that allocates the fair values into a

measurement hierarchy. The following principles have been applied in classifying these instruments:

As at 30 June 2015

The fair value of the financial instruments as well as the methods used to estimate the fair value are summarised in the table below:

The Group does not have any financial assets or liabilities that are classified as held for trading, available for sale or classified as held to maturity.

Summary of Financial Instruments Held

At the balance sheet date the Group reports the following categories of financial instruments:

Level 1 - the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets;

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All of the above facilities have a floating rate of interest which is tied to the New Zealand BKBM plus margin. At balance sheet date the Group has interest rate swaps that cover $112,816,000 

(2015: $119,168,000) of the principal balance drawn at balance sheet date. Refer to Note 9.
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

 

2. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

Determination of Lease Accounting

Capital Management

Financial Risk Associated to Biological Assets

The Group is exposed to financial risks in respect of agricultural activities. The agricultural activities of the Group consist of the management of vineyards to produce grapes for use in the

production of wine. The primary risk borne by the Group is caused by the length of time between when cash is expended on the purchase or planting and maintenance of grape vines and on

harvesting grapes and the ultimate realisation of proceeds from the sale of finished product (wine). The Group takes reasonable measures to ensure that the current year's harvest is not affected by

disease, drought, frost, or other factors that may have a negative effect upon yield and quality. These measures include consultation with experts in viticulture, frost protection measures, and

ensuring that each vineyard is managed according to a specifically developed Vineyard Management Calendar. 

In applying the Group's accounting policies, management continually evaluates the judgements, estimates and assumptions based on experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that may have an impact upon the Group. All judgements, estimates and assumptions made are believed to be reasonable based upon the most current set of circumstances available to

management. The actual results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions used. The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management in the preparation of

these financial statements are the following:

The fair value of grape vines is determined by an independent valuer. Two methodologies were used in determining the carrying value of these assets and the methodology applied is dependent

upon the size and availability of an open market for similar assets. The significant assumptions used are detailed in Note 14. The two methodologies are described below:

When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure the entity continues as a going concern as well as to maintain optimal returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders of the

business. The ultimate aim is to maintain a capital structure which provides flexibility to enable future growth of the Group whilst ensuring the lowest cost of capital is available to the Group.

Fair Value of Agricultural Assets

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Trade Receivables

The Group is subject to a series of bank covenants over its Senior Debt facilities. These are discussed in Note 10. 

The Group assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger

exists the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Management consider there are no indicators of impairment in the current year and the recoverable amount of the Group's assets was not

required to be determined.

The Group has entered into long-term vineyard leases which allow the Group to control the growing and harvesting of the grapes used in the production of finished product. After taking into

consideration the terms and conditions within the lease, it is believed that the lessor retains the significant risks and rewards of ownership and the leases are accordingly classified as operating

leases.

The fair value of grapes at the point of harvest is determined by reference to market prices for each variety of grape grown in the local area at the time of harvest. The Directors' assessment of the

fair value at the point of harvest is determined after reviewing the market price paid to independent grape growers.

i) Where there is market information for the sale of comparable vineyard assets in active markets

Where there is market information for the sale of comparable vineyard assets in active markets (level 3 inputs of the fair value measurement hierarchy) the underlying agricultural assets are valued

based upon the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability, under current market conditions, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. The Directors consider that there is market information for the sale of comparable vineyard assets in active markets for vineyards that have an estimated market value under $9 million (2015:

$9 million) and under 50 productive hectares.  This threshold is reviewed annually based on market information.  

Fair Value of Grapes at the Point of Harvest

The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience as well as lease terms. The condition of the assets are assessed at least once per year and considered against the

remaining useful life. Adjustments to useful lives are made when considered necessary. The significant depreciation terms and classes of equipment are noted in the Statement of Accounting

Policies. The depreciation charges are included in Note 4. From 1 July 2015, the Group increased the estimated remaining useful lives of certain winery assets (tanks, pipework and presses) and

certain vineyard assets (trellis, land preparation and operational costs capitalised) based on the condition of these assets and information from the suppliers of these assets. The changes are applied

prospectively and have decreased the depreciation charge on these assets by approximately $1,819,000 in the current year, of which approximately $976,000 has been released as cost of sales in

the statement of financial performance. There will be a similar decrease in future years but it is not practicable to quantify the effect of this change as existing winery and vineyard assets reach the

end of their useful lives and new winery and vineyard assets are acquired.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group has derivative financial instruments which are classified as level 2, as they have inputs other than observable quoted prices. In calculating the mark-to-market values, management has

considered the forward rates.  

Where trade receivable balances are outstanding beyond their normal trading terms, the likelihood of the recovery of these trade receivables is assessed by management. The Group reviews the

standing of each trade receivable balance to determine if the recording of an impairment loss is required. 

Estimation of Useful Lives of Assets

Management review the capital structure of the Group as a result of changes in market conditions which impact upon interest and foreign exchange rates and may adjust the capital structure to take

advantage of these changes. Management have no current plans to issue further shares on the market but is intent on growing the business which will require future funding. 

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

ii) Where there is no market information available for the sale of comparable vineyard assets in active markets

There is no market information for the sale of vineyard assets in an active market for the size and scale of some of the Group's vineyards and the fair value of biological assets has been measured

through the use of a discounted net cash flow model (level 3 inputs of the fair value measurement hierarchy). Market value of vineyards of smaller scale had been considered in the determination of

fair value, however it was found that measurement inconsistency would result as the underlying assets are fundamentally different in nature. Refer to Note 14 for other significant assumptions used

in the discounted net cash flow model. 
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Delegat Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

3. Segmental Reporting

Delegat Limited

Delegat Australia 

Pty Limited

Delegat Europe 

Limited

Delegat USA, 

Inc.  

Other 

Segments
10

Eliminations and 

Adjustments 
11

Year Ended 30 June 

2016

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Operating income

    External sales
 7, 9

52,817         66,859             73,786         87,254         4,267          (42,368) 242,615           

    Internal sales 194,500       -                  -               -              9,646          (204,146) -                  

    Fair value movement on derivative instruments 4,716           -                  -               -              -              -                4,716               

    Biological assets increase 6,753           -                  -               -              290             -                7,043               

Total segment revenues
1

258,786 66,859 73,786 87,254 14,203 (246,514) 254,374           

Interest revenue 9                  7                      -               -              5,692          (5,679) 29                    

Operating expenses

    Interest expense
2

13,616         -                  -               -              1,719          (5,679) 9,656               

    Depreciation and amortisation
3

10,164         136                  11                69               1,146          -                11,526             

    Income tax expense
4

19,173         509                  378              835             599             (124)               21,370             

Segment profit/(loss) 48,762         1,176               1,478           1,347          1,547          (320)               53,990             

Assets

Segment assets
5

627,150       13,201             17,377         17,916         132,687       (120,409)        687,922           

Capital expenditure
6

98,020         132                  1                  50               15,602         -                113,805           

Segment liabilities 393,095       3,405               9,462           10,571         72,526         (115,022)        374,037           

The Group reviews its operational performance based upon the management and the geographic areas in which their customers are based. Financial information which is available to management in 

order to assess segment performance and investment opportunities is presented on the same basis. In accordance with NZ IFRS 8: Operating Segments this forms the basis of presentation for 

Segment Reporting and is the format adopted below:

Management monitor the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making resource allocations and performance assessments. Segment performance is evaluated based on 

operating profit or loss, which may be measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements as segment reporting is based upon internal management reports. 

The main differences are a result of some deferred tax balances being recognised upon consolidation not being allocated to individual subsidiaries. Also intercompany stock margin eliminations are 

managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

The Group implements appropriate transfer pricing regimes within the operating segments on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. 

- Delegat is party to vineyard leases and has interests in freehold land and winery infrastructure which allows the company to grow, harvest and make finished wine to be marketed, distributed and 

sold into the Super-Premium wine markets. Delegat sells and markets its product through a combination of subsidiary companies based overseas or to customers and distributors directly in the New 

Zealand, Canadian, Asian and Pacific Island markets. Delegat Australia Pty Limited, Delegat Europe Limited and Delegat USA, Inc. act as distributors and assist in the marketing of product in 

their respective geographic regions. Wines are sold all year round to all regions and the Company considers there is no significant variations in revenues throughout the year.

Year ended 30 June 2016
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3. Segmental Reporting (continued)

Delegat Limited

Delegat Australia 

Pty Limited

Delegat Europe 

Limited

Delegat USA, 

Inc.  

Other 

Segments
10

Eliminations and 

Adjustments 
11

Year Ended 30 June 

2015

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Operating income

    External sales 
8, 9

55,186         62,224             65,202         64,825         4,753          (40,298) 211,892           

    Internal sales 162,122       -                  -               -              5,753          (167,875) -                  

    Biological assets increase/(decrease) 19,064         -                  -               -              196             -                19,260             

Total segment revenues 
1

236,372       62,224             65,202         64,825         10,702         (208,173) 231,152           

Interest revenue 14                13                    -               -              5,446          (5,408) 65                    

Operating expenses

    Interest expense
2

12,518         -                  -               1                 1,763          (5,408) 8,874               

    Depreciation and amortisation
3

11,337         131                  14                90               976             -                12,548             

    Income tax expense
4

9,927           465                  311              704             1,547          279                13,233             

Segment profit/(loss) 25,932         1,068               1,170           896             3,960          (503)               32,523             

Assets

Segment assets
5

486,900       15,135             17,603         18,186         127,992       (105,423)        560,393           

Capital expenditure
6

72,699         65                    18                190             7,670          -                80,642             

Segment liabilities 302,538       5,809               9,454           11,858         58,397         (101,078)        286,978           

4. Expenses

Expenses by function have been categorised as follows:

2016 2015

$000 $000

Cost of sales 103,966         107,895           

Selling, marketing and promotion expenses 54,569           44,410             

Corporate governance expenses 906                927                  

Administration expenses 9,917             11,728             

Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments -                11,562             

Specific components of the above expenses include:

Directors' fees - Delegat Group Limited  280                280                  

Directors' fees - Overseas subsidiaries 23                  34                    

Accounting and tax consultancy 21 208                209                  

Audit fees  21 185                185                  

Unrealised foreign exchange loss 110                -                  

Amortisation of capitalised leases 251                202                  

Depreciation on vineyard improvements 1,565             2,088               

Depreciation on buildings 1,685             1,082               

Depreciation on plant and equipment 8,025             9,176               

Wages and salaries 37,556           34,624             

Defined contribution pension plans 1,302             1,187               

Share-based payments expense 5                    5                      

Termination benefits paid 151                177                  

Vineyard related lease payments 6,800             6,627               

Other lease payments 8,641             8,728               

9.   External sales include government grants of $322,000 (2015: $134,000).

The depreciation and amortisation figures presented above represent the gross depreciation and amortisation charge for the year. Depreciation and amortisation is recorded in the business function

to which the asset relates. Depreciation incurred on assets directly associated with winemaking and viticulture of $9,819,000 (2015: $10,307,000) is included within the cost of inventories and

expensed as a cost of sales when product is sold. 

Year ended 30 June 2015

1.   Intersegment revenues are eliminated on consolidation. Intercompany profit margins are also eliminated.

2.   Interest expense is net of any interest capitalised to long-term assets.  During the year $4,010,000 was capitalised to long-term assets (2015: $2,670,000).

3.   Depreciation and amortisation expenses presented above are gross of $9,819,000 (2015: $10,307,000), which have been included within inventory.  

4.   Segment income tax expense does not include the deferred tax impacts of temporary differences arising from intercompany stock margin eliminations or fair value adjustments resulting from the 

purchase of subsidiary companies as these are managed on a group level.

5.   Segment assets include the value of investments and loan balances for subsidiaries which reside in Delegat Limited however do not include the effects of stock margin eliminations for stock on 

hand in subsidiaries.

6.   Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment inclusive of capitalised interest. Capital expenditure is included within each of the reported segment assets noted 

above.

8.   During the 2015 financial year Delegat Australia Pty Limited had a single customer which comprised 10% or more of Group sales amounting to $25,036,000.   

7.   During the 2016 financial year Delegat Australia Pty Limited had a single customer which comprised 10% or more of Group sales amounting to $29,170,000 and Delegat USA,Inc had a single 

customer which comprised 10% or more of group sales amounting to $36,353,000.  

11.   The eliminations and adjustments of segment profit, assets and liabilities relate to intercompany transactions and balances which are eliminated on consolidation.

The lease expense figures above represent the total lease payments and other occupancy expenses for the year. During the year lease costs of $40,000 (2015: $40,000) have been capitalised to

property, plant and equipment in respect of vineyards that are in development and are not considered to be in commercial production, which is generally when the vineyard has produced

approximately 60% of the expected yield at full production.  

The employee benefit figures above represent the gross employee benefits expense for the year. Included within inventory is remuneration paid to employees directly associated with winemaking,

bottling and packaging. During the year $7,582,000 (2015: $7,148,000) of employee benefits were included within inventory. These costs are included within inventory until the stock to which the

expenditure relates is sold. 

10.   Other segments' assets include non-current assets of Barossa Valley Estate Pty Limited of $43,920,000 (2015: $31,784,000) which are located in Australia.  

Depreciation on vineyard development commences when the vineyard is considered to be in commercial production, which is generally when the vineyard has produced approximately 60% of the

expected yield at full production.
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5. Share Capital
2016 2015

$000 $000

Balance at the beginning of the year 49,712           49,712             

Shares issued during the year 103                -                  
Balance at the end of the year 49,815           49,712             

a) Movement in the Number of Ordinary Shares on Issue

000's 000's

Balance at the beginning of the year 101,130         101,130           
Balance at the end of the year 101,130         101,130           

b) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

i) Share-based Payments Reserve

ii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

6. Dividends Paid and Proposed

a) Recognised Amounts

b) Unrecognised Amounts

7. Share-based Payments

The fair value of the options at grant date was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions under which the options were granted. 

The employee equity reserve is used to record the value of share-based payments provided to employees as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 7 for more information.

Dividends paid on these shares are for the benefit of employees, however the employees agreed that the dividends are paid directly to Delegat to reduce the employee's loan balance with Delegat.

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. During the year equity decreased by

$2,483,000 upon the translation of foreign subsidiaries (2015: $2,950,000 increase).

After the balance sheet date, dividends of 12.0 cents per share were approved by the Board of Directors. These amounts are not recognised in these financial statements as the declaration date was

subsequent to year-end.

Under the Share Scheme, Delegat, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent, provided a loan facility to the subscribers for an amount equal to the issue price. The employee acquired both legal and

beneficial ownership in the shares from the date of issue. The shares were subject to restrictions for a period of 48 months after the date of issue, which restricted the employee from selling,

offering for sale, agreeing to sell, transferring, granting any interest in the shares, or otherwise encumbering the shares without the prior approval of the Board of Directors of the Parent.  

As the conditions of the Share Scheme gave the employee the right, but not necessarily the obligation, to subscribe to shares in the Parent the arrangement is considered an in-substance share

option plan, and are accounted for under NZ IFRS 2: Share-based Payments. During the year ending 30 June 2016 an expense of $5,000 (2015: $5,000) has been recorded.   

The Parent has an employee share ownership plan, known as the Delegat Group Limited Employee Share Ownership Plan (Share Scheme). Share options are granted to selected senior executives

and the Share Scheme is designed to align participant's interests with those of shareholders by increasing the value of the Parent's Shares. The shares issued to the employees carry the same voting

rights as other issued ordinary shares.

 Shares Held 

There are 101,130,000 (2015: 101,130,000) fully paid ordinary shares on issue at balance sheet date. All ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and surplus on

winding up. Shares issued in New Zealand do not have a par value.

There are no options outstanding at 30 June 2016 under this arrangement. 50,000 options issued in May 2012 with an exercise price of $2.07 each were exercised in May 2016 upon meeting the

conditions below:

Dividends that were declared and paid on ordinary shares during the year amounted to $11,129,000 (2015: $11,129,000) equating to 11.0 cents per share (2015: 11.0 cents per share).

In May 2016, 50,000 shares previously issued under the Delegat Group Limited Employee Share Ownership Plan vested and the employee's outstanding loan balances were repaid.
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8. Trade Payables and Accruals
2016 2015

$000 $000

Trade payables 16,519           15,504             

Employee entitlements and leave benefits 3,997             4,058               

Goods and services tax 348                532                  

Accrued expenses 10,326           9,645               
31,190           29,739             

9. Derivative Financial Instruments

a) Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts and Options

2016 2015 2016 2015

$000 $000

 
Sell AUD, maturity 0-4 months          0.9068          0.8983 13,674           3,228               

Sell USD, maturity 0-9 months          0.6946          0.7327 8,245             13,688             

Sell GBP, maturity 0-7 months          0.4626          0.4773 16,337           20,942             

Sell CAD, maturity 0-6 months          0.8756          0.8936 4,626             5,676               

Sell SGD, maturity 0-3 months          0.9183          0.9709 354                515                  

Sell EUR, maturity 0-1 months          0.6224                 -   3                    -                  

Sell HKD                 -            5.5619 -                450                  

Buying Currency/Selling NZD

Buy EUR, maturity 0-4 months          0.6256          0.6622 2,540             1,459               

Buy JPY, maturity 0-7 months        72.7837        89.6427 2                    83                    

2016 2015 2016 2015

$000 $000

         0.6739          0.7875              4,540                5,102 

         0.4567          0.4706              6,570                9,570 

         0.8900          0.8990              2,247                2,225 

Sell CAD, maturity 9 months          0.8600          0.8960              1,163                1,397 

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

$000 $000 $000 $000

2,986          -              -                               3,684 

1,295          -              -                               1,375 
4,281          -              -                5,059               

-              -                                 -   388                  
-              -                                 -   388                  

Forward Exchange Contracts

Current:  

Non-current:  

The Group has the following derivative financial instruments outstanding at the balance sheet date.

AVERAGE 

CONTRACTED RATE

NZ IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement requires that derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading for measurement purposes unless they are accounted

for as hedges. Under NZ IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements, assets and liabilities under the held for trading classification would generally be classified as current in the statement of

financial position. However if the intent is not to actually trade the derivative financial instruments with maturities greater than 1 year but to hold them until maturity, then the derivative financial

instruments are more appropriately classified as non-current. The amounts that are classified as non-current reflect the amounts that will not be settled in the next 12 months.  

Selling Currency/Buying NZD

The classification of forward exchange contracts and forward currency options between current and non-current is based on whether the contracts will settled in the next 12 months. The fair value

of open contracts existing at balance sheet date are classified as follows:   

2016 2015

Forward Exchange Contracts

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined by comparing the market rates for contracts with the same nominal amount, exercise price and length of time to maturity. 

Selling Currency / Buying NZD

AVERAGE 

CONTRACTED RATE

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled between 30 to 60 days. As a result of their short-term nature, trade payables and accruals are not discounted. The carrying amount

disclosed above is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are used by the Group in the normal course of business in order to reduce the risk of fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates. All movements in the fair

value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period they occur.

Foreign Currency Options

i) Forward Exchange Contracts

ii) Forward Currency Options

Sell USD, maturity 2-10 months

Sell GBP, maturity 6-11 months

Sell AUD, maturity 6-9 months
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9. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

$000 $000 $000 $000

-              2,397          -                1,528               
-              2,397          -                1,528               

-                         7,057 -                               2,914 

-              7,057          -                2,914               

10. Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings

At the balance sheet date the following debt facilities have been drawn upon by the Group.

Maturity 2016 2015

2016 2015 $000 $000

Non-Current Debt Obligations

Term facility (Multi-Currency)  31 December 2019 3.41% 5.86% 84,859           129,579           

Forward Start Facility  31 December 2019 5.34% N/A 99,858           -                  

Term facility (AUD)  31 December 2019 3.56% 4.07% 52,324           33,108             

Working capital  31 December 2019 3.49% 4.60% 50,107           44,081             
287,148         206,768           

 

ii) Other Facilities

Non-current:  

2015

Interest Rate Swaps

Interest Rate Swaps

Effective Interest Rate

At balance sheet date interest rate contracts are in place that cover a total $95,000,000 (2015: $100,000,000 ) of current New Zealand dollar denominated Group debt through ten separate cap rate 

agreements, which range in maturity from zero to six years.  The interest rate swap is capped at 5.96% for $25,000,000, 3.99% for $10,000,000, 4.18% for $10,000,000, 3.31% for $7,500,000, 

3.29% for $7,500,000, 3.48% for $7,500,000, 3.95% for $7,500,000 and 3.7% for $7,500,000, 3.99% for $7,500,000 and 3.55% for $5,000,000 (2015: 5.84% for $25,000,000, 5.96% for 

$25,000,000, 3.31% for $7,500,000, 3.29% for $7,500,000, 3.48% for $7,500,000, 3.99% for $10,000,000, 4.18% for $10,000,000 and 3.95% for $7,500,000) plus bank margin. At balance sheet 

date interest rate contracts are in place that cover a total A$17,000,000 (2015:A$17,000,000) of current Australian dollar denominated Group debt through seven separate cap rate agreements, 

which range in maturity from two to six years.  The interest rate swap is capped at 3.87% for A$2,000,000, 3.75% for A$2,000,000, 3.69% for A$2,000,000, 3.65% for A$4,000,000, 3.60% for 

A$2,000,000, 2.90% for A$2,500,000 and 3.40% for A$2,500,000 (2015:  3.87% for A$2,000,000, 3.75% for A$2,000,000, 3.69% for A$2,000,000, 3.65% for A$4,000,000, 3.60% for 

A$2,000,000, 2.90% for $2,500,000 and 3.40% for $2,500,000) plus bank margin.  

At balance sheet date the Group has a further 11 separate cap rate agreements, which apply from various future dates to cover future Group indebtedness.  These range in maturity from four to 

seven years.  The interest rate is capped at 4.70% for $5,000,000 from December 2016, 4.90% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.65% for $5,000,000 from December 2016, 4.85% for 

$5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.73% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.65% for $10,000,000 from December 2016, 4.70% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 3.71% for $10,000,000 

from December 2019, 3.60% for $20,000,000 from September 2018, 3.90% for A$5,000,000 from December 2016 and 3.85% for A$5,000,000 from December 2016 (2015: 3.70% for $7,500,000 

from December 2015, 3.99% for $7,500,000 from December 2015, 4.70% for $5,000,000 from December 2016, 4.90% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.65% for $5,000,000 from 

December 2016, 4.85% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.73% for $5,000,000 from December 2018, 4.65% for $10,000,000 from December 2016, 4.70% for $5,000,000 from December 

2018, 3.71% for $10,000,000 from December 2019, 3.55% for $5,000,000 from December 2015, 3.60% for $20,000,000 from September 2018, 3.90% for A$5,000,000 from December 2016 and 

3.85% for A$5,000,000 from December 2016), plus bank margin.

The classification between current and non-current is based on whether the contracts or portion of contracts will be settled within the next 12 months. The total fair value of these contracts at

balance sheet date are classified as follows:  

2016

i) Senior Debt Facilities 

In order to protect against risks relating to increases in interest rates, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which the Group receives interest at variable rates and has agreed

to pay interest at fixed rates for varying terms of principal and time durations. 

b) Interest Rate Swaps

The Group has elected not to apply hedge accounting and accordingly the instruments have been classified as fair value through profit and loss. 

b) Terms and Conditions of Debt Facilities

The Group has a syndicated Senior Debt facilities agreement with Westpac New Zealand Limited (Westpac), Bank of New Zealand and ASB Bank Limited.  With the syndicated facility a General 

Security Agreement has been put in place in favour of the banks over the existing and future assets of Delegat Group Limited, Delegat Limited, Delegat Australia Pty Limited and Barossa Valley 

Estate Pty Limited.  

At balance sheet date the Working Capital, Term facility (Multi-Currency), Term facility (AUD), and Forward Start facility collectively make up the syndicated Senior Debt Facilities of Delegat, 

which provide funding for the assets of the Group.  The maximum limit of the Working Capital facility is NZ$65,000,000 (2015: NZ$65,000,000), the Term facility (Multi-Currency) is 

NZ$130,000,000 (2015: NZ$130,000,000), Term facility (AUD) is A$50,000,000 (2015: A$50,000,000), and Forward Start facility is NZ$100,000,000 (2015: NZ$Nil).  At balance sheet date 

$59,706,000 (2015: $43,971,000) is available for further drawdown on these facilities. 

The Term facility (AUD) and a portion of the Term facility (Multi-Currency) are denominated in Australian dollars (A$).  The amount drawn down in foreign currency at the balance sheet date was 

A$56,200,000 (2015: A$29,450,000).  

Interest on these facilities is based on the BKBM plus margin. The facility agreement requires that certain banking covenants be met and requires the Group to maintain or better specified EBITDA 

and fixed charges coverage ratios, and maintain or better a minimum adjusted equity balance. The Group must also maintain or better a specified total tangible asset backing. At year-end, and at all 

points during the year, the covenants of the Senior Debt Facilities have been met.

The carrying amount of the Group's non-current borrowings are the fair values at balance sheet date.  Fees paid on the establishment of the loan facilities are included in their carrying value.  

Delegat also has available an overdraft limit of $1,000,000 (2015: $1,000,000). Interest charged on this facility is at the commercial lending rate (2015: commercial lending rate). At 30 June 2016

the commercial lending rate is 5.70% (2015: commercial lending rate 6.20%). No amount is drawn against this facility at balance sheet date.

Current:  

a) Debt Facilities Existing at Balance Sheet Date

The total fair value of these contracts at balance sheet date is a liability of $9,454,000 (2015: $4,442,000 liability).
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11. Trade and Other Receivables
2016 2015

$000 $000

Trade receivables   38,059           36,697             

Prepayments and sundry receivables 2,721             4,018               

Non-trade receivables 1,473             1,079               

Goods and services tax 1,493             1,148               
   43,746           42,942             

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

PDNI PDNI PDNI

30 June 2016  38,059             35,598         2,276          177             6                    2                      

30 June 2015 36,697             34,548         2,125          10               5                    9                      

Individually 

Impaired

Collectively 

Impaired
Total

Individually 

Impaired

Collectively 

Impaired
Total

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at the start of the year 60                -                  60                -              -                -                  

Written-off during the year -               -                  -               -              -                -                  

Recovered during the year (60)               -                  (60)               -              -                -                  

Charged during the year -               -                  -               60               -                60                    
Balance at the end of the year -               -                  -               60               -                60                    

12. Inventories

2016 2015

$000 $000

Current vintage 79,342           57,387             

Aged wine 42,682           46,856             

Growing costs relating to next harvest 4,087             3,733               

Winery ingredients, packaging materials and other 4,499             4,912               
130,610         112,888           

2016

Total

At the end of each month the Group assesses the recoverability of debtor balances and makes provisions for specific debtors where the ultimate collection of balances owed are considered to be

unlikely. The table below presents the movements in the provision for doubtful debtors. At 30 June 2016, trade receivables at a nominal value of $nil (2015: $60,000) were impaired and fully

provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

< 30 days

2015

Prior to harvest, the cost of agricultural activities are included in inventory. Upon harvest, the Group is required to value agricultural produce at fair value in line with NZ IAS 41: Agriculture. A fair 

value gain of $20,765,000 (2015: $5,053,000) was recorded during the year and included within cost of sales. 

Current

Included within cost of sales is a total of $124,731,000 (2015: $112,948,000) which represents costs expended in grape growing (inclusive of leased costs), procurement, delivery and materials. 

61 to 90 days > 90 days

As at 30 June 2016 the ageing of trade receivables, net of provisions (as detailed below), is as follows:

31 to 60 

days

All amounts recognised as trade receivables are unsecured and the maximum credit risk is equivalent to the carrying values noted directly above. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and

generally settled on 30 to 90 day terms. Due to their short-term nature trade receivables are not discounted and the above values approximate their fair value. There are amounts which are past due

(PDNI) however the Group does not consider these to be impaired as the ultimate collection is reasonably assured. 
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment  

a) Reconciliation of Carrying Amounts at the Beginning and End of the Year

Year ended

30 June 2016

Freehold Land 

and Land 

Improvements

Vineyard 

Improvements Buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Capitalised 

Vineyard 

Lease 

Payments

Capital Work in 

Progress Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Net book value at 1 July 2015 80,987         33,655             49,050         78,539         2,597          65,030           309,858           

Additions / Transfers 32,511         23,893             51,565         44,671         117             (41,173)          111,584           

Disposals -               -                  -               (1,215)         -              -                (1,215)             

Foreign currency translation (408)             (146)                (495)             (659)            -              (662)               (2,370)             

Depreciation charge -               (1,565)             (1,685)          (8,025)         (251)            -                (11,526)            

At cost 113,097       74,316             108,269       183,322       15,351         23,195           517,550           

Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment (7)                 (18,479)            (9,834)          (70,011)       (12,888)       -                (111,219)          

Year ended

30 June 2015

Freehold Land 

and Land 

Improvements

Vineyard 

Improvements Buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Capitalised 

Vineyard 

Lease 

Payments

Capital Work in 

Progress Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Net book value at 1 July 2014 78,957         35,419             39,911         63,538         2,799          25,923           246,547           

Additions / Transfers 1,950           288                  10,488         24,424         -              38,751           75,901             

Disposals (151)             (22)                  (591)             (707)            -              -                (1,471)             

Foreign currency translation 231              58                    324              460             -              356                1,429               

Depreciation charge -               (2,088)             (1,082)          (9,176)         (202)            -                (12,548)            

At cost 80,994         50,577             57,242         143,420       15,394         65,030           412,657           

Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment (7)                 (16,922)            (8,192)          (64,881)       (12,797)       -                (102,799)          

b) Other Items

14. Biological Assets

113,090       

33,655             49,050         

23,195           406,331           

Net book value at 30 

June 2016 98,435         55,837             113,311       

Net book value at 30 

June 2016 2,463          

Net book value at 30 

June 2015

Biological assets consist of grape vines on our vineyards located in New Zealand and the Barossa Valley, Australia. At 30 June 2016 the Group has grape vines planted on 1,381 productive 

hectares of land (2015: 1,062 productive hectares) in New Zealand and 55 productive hectares (2015: 39 productive hectares) in Australia. During the year the Group harvested a total of 33,236

tonnes of grapes (2015: 25,081 tonnes) in New Zealand. Of this amount a total of 11,038 tonnes (2015: 8,910 tonnes) were purchased from independent third party growers. The Group harvested

2,601 tonnes of grapes in Australia (2015: 1,667 tonnes). Of this amount a total of 2,002 tonnes (2015: 1,361 tonnes) were purchased from independent third party growers. The fair value of

agricultural produce from the Group's owned and leased vineyards at the point of harvest was $45,957,000 (2015: $29,574,000).

49,050         80,987         309,858           65,030           33,655             

Net book value at 30 

June 2015

Grape vines on the Group's vineyards are measured at fair value at balance sheet date as determined by Logan Stone in New Zealand and Gaetjens Pickett Valuers in Australia - accredited and

independent third party valuers.  

Where there is market information for the sale of comparable vineyard assets in active markets (level 3 inputs of the fair value measurement hierarchy) the vineyards are valued based upon the

price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability, under current market conditions, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Market

information from the sale of comparable vineyard assets in the same region and planted in the same varieties are used to determine a value per hectare of land. This is then applied to value the

Group's vineyards and adjusted for any other known differences between the properties. In Marlborough the market information for the value per hectare of land ranges from $30,000 to $120,000

per hectare and Hawke's Bay from $25,000 to $100,000 per hectare. An increase/decrease in the market information for the value per hectare of land would result in an increase/decrease in the fair

value of biological assets.   

For vineyard operations which have a forecasted future market value in excess of $9,000,000 (2015: $9,000,000) or when the vineyard has in excess of 50 productive hectares, the fair value is

based upon a discounted net cash flow model (level 3 unobservable inputs of the fair value measurement hierarchy) because the Directors do not consider there is market information for the sale of

vineyard assets of this size from an active market. The net present values determined for each vineyard from the model are first allocated to the non-biological assets with the value of the biological

assets being the residual balance. All of the Group's interest in biological assets have been valued using this methodology. Inherent within this model are a number of assumptions that significantly

impact upon the reported fair value and these are noted below.

80,987         

During the year no assets were transferred and classified as assets available for sale. The weighted average interest rate on interest capitalised during the year was 5.78%.

2,597          

406,331           23,195           55,837             113,090       98,435         113,311       

78,539         2,597          65,030           309,858           

78,539         

2,463          
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14. Biological Assets (continued)

The discounted net cash flow model used to derive the fair value of large vineyards incorporates the following significant assumptions:

2016 2015

i) Average remaining life of grape vines 
(a)

Variable Variable

ii) Average yield per hectare of mature vineyards   
(b)

8.0 to 15.5 tonnes per hectare  9.0 to 14.0 tonnes per hectare

iii) Pre-tax discount rate which cash flows are discounted   
(c) 

8.0% to 9.0% 8.0% to 9.0%

iv) Annual rate of inflation to cost and revenue inputs   
(d)

0.0% to 0.8% 0.0% to 1.0%

v) Vineyard maintenance costs 
(e)

$7,700 to $9,200 per hectare $7,600 to $9,200 per hectare

All of the above assumptions were determined by Independent Valuer, Logan Stone, and were considered reasonable by the Directors of the Group. 

The movement in the fair value of biological assets (grape vines) is summarised as follows:

2016 2015

$000 $000

Carrying value at the start of the year 86,200           64,112             

Purchases of biological assets 1,401             3,075               

Disposal of biological assets -                (295)                

Changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs 7,043             19,260             

Foreign currency translation (131)               48                    
Carrying value at the end of the year 94,513           86,200             

15. Intangible Assets

The movement in the value of intangible assets is summarised as follows:

2016 2015

$000 $000

Carrying value at the beginning of the year 3,066             1,294               

Purchases of intangible assets 820                1,666               

Foreign currency translation (194)               106                  
Carrying value at the end of the year 3,692             3,066               

e)  Vineyard maintenance costs exclude capital expenditure, management fees and lease costs for leased vineyards. These are separately included within the discounted net cash flow model. The 

Independent Valuer has estimated the total running cost on a per hectare basis, which is variable depending on vineyard management, size and scale of the vineyard being assessed. For leased 

vineyards the actual annual lease cost is used with future lease costs adjusted for the anticipated movements in lease costs as a result of the rent reviews.

Intangible assets consist of water rights with indefinite useful life.  

Barossa Valley Estate Pty Limited (BVE) owns water rights which have been valued at cost. The water rights consist of shares in Barossa Infrastructure Limited (BIL) and associated infrastructure

levies. These water rights grant BVE the right to a fixed number of units of water per share and were purchased by BVE to support their vineyard activities. BVE continues to have the right to use

the water over an indefinite period and therefore the water rights are considered to have an indefinite useful life.  

Delegat Limited (Delegat) owns water rights which have been valued at cost. The water rights consist of shares in Lower Waihopai Dam Limited. These water rights grant Delegat the right to a

fixed number of units of water per share and were purchased by Delegat to support their vineyard activities. Delegat continues to have the right to use the water over an indefinite period and

therefore the water rights are considered to have an indefinite useful life.   

c) The discount rates used are based upon the long-term pre-tax discount rate within the sector and sub-regions within the Hawke's Bay and Marlborough. The rates used are consistent with the 

Group's long-term cost of capital.

b) The average yield is dependent upon the variety of grape grown, as well as the underlying health and age of the vine stock.

The fair value of vines on leased land where the Group does not have the beneficial ownership in the vine asset, is not reported below, as the risks and rewards incidental to owning the vines do not

transfer to the Group. The Group is however party to leases of land on which vine stock is owned by the Group. The fair value of these assets are reported, as the risk and rewards incidental to

ownership are retained by the Group.

a) The average remaining life of grape vines is assumed to continue in perpetuity as vines not producing at commercial levels are replaced each year. 

Assuming all other unobservable inputs are held constant, the following changes in these assumptions will cause an increase in the fair value of the biological assets, (i) an increase  in average 

yields, (ii) reduction in the discount rate, (iii) increase in the grape prices used in the first year of the models and inflation rates applied to future grape prices, and (iv) a reduction in vineyard 

maintenance costs and vice versa.  There is a degree of interrelationship between some of the assumptions (i.e. an increase in average yields can impact the grape price assumptions) however the 

assumptions can equally also move independently to offset any favourable/unfavourable movement in the other assumptions.      

d) Grape prices are reviewed annually after taking into consideration various market factors,  as well as reviewing the district average pricing report for grapes of similar quality and variety. Prices 

for grapes range from $1,500 to $3,000 per tonne, depending on the varietal sold. Subsequent years' grape prices per tonne are then indexed for inflation. 

Changes in fair value result from vineyards attaining full maturity and vines reaching the maximum expected yield per hectare.  

Replacement plantings required are expensed as incurred.  During the year the Group had incurred $80,000 (2015: $45,000) associated with the replanting of vines.  These expenses are included as 

repairs and maintenance.  
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16. Income Tax Expense
2016 2015

$000 $000

Accounting profit before tax 75,360           45,756             

At the Group's statutory income tax rate of 28% (2015: 28%) 21,101           12,812             

Tax impact of following items:

Adjustments in respect of income tax of prior years (137)               178                  

Entertainment 155                111                  

Legal fees and acquisition costs 46                  142                  

Non-assessable income (22)                (59)                  

Non-deductible items 138                12                    

Tax on foreign income due to different tax rates 88                  36                    

Share-based payments expense 1                    1                      
Income tax expense for the year 21,370           13,233             

Estimated current period tax assessment 12,519           12,720             

Adjustments in respect of income tax of prior years (42)                (514)                

Movements in the deferred income tax liability 8,893             1,027               
Income tax expense for the year  21,370           13,233             

i) Deferred tax liabilities  

Capitalised interest 3,848             2,816               

Capitalised leases 589                648                  

Accelerated depreciation of long-term assets 14,190           12,638             

Excess of fair value of biological assets over tax values 19,386           17,408             

Fair value adjustments on biological produce 7,631             4,363               
Gross deferred tax liabilities 45,644           37,873             

ii) Deferred tax assets

Provisions 714                784                  

Stock profit and intercompany eliminations 469                345                  

Tax losses carried forward 427                278                  

Financial derivative instruments 1,448             2,769               

Fair value adjustments on biological produce -                50                    
Gross deferred tax assets 3,058             4,226               

Net deferred tax liability 42,586           33,647             

Balance at the beginning of the year 33,647           32,649             

On surplus for year 8,893             1,027               

Foreign currency translation 46                  (29)                  
Balance at the end of the year  42,586           33,647             

There are no elements of deferred taxes which are reported within equity.   

17. Imputation Credit Account

2016 2015

$000 $000

Balance at the beginning of the year 40,240           32,052             

Tax payments 10,952           12,314             

Fully imputed dividend paid (4,126)            (4,126)             
Balance at the end of the year 47,066           40,240             

a) Numerical Reconciliation between aggregate tax expense in the statement of financial performance and tax 

expense calculated per the statutory income tax rate

b) The major components of income tax expense are:

c) Deferred income tax at balance sheet date relates to the following:
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18. Commitments

a) Operating Leases

2016 2015

$000 $000

Lease commitments under non-cancellable operating leases.

Within one year 12,496           14,175             

One to two years 12,353           10,502             

Two to five years 27,382           25,024             

Beyond five years 39,592           46,075             
91,823           95,776             

b) Capital Commitments

19.  Related Parties

Name of Entity Principal Activity Parent Company Country of Incorporation 2016 2015

Delegat Limited Winemaking, Sales and Distribution Delegat Group Limited New Zealand 100.00           100.00             

Delegat Canada Limited Brand Marketing Delegat Group Limited Canada 100.00           100.00             

Delegat Australia Pty Limited Sales and Distribution Delegat Group Limited Australia 100.00           100.00             

Oyster Bay Wines (USA) Limited Brand Marketing Delegat Group Limited New Zealand 100.00           100.00             

Delegat USA, Inc.  Sales and Distribution Delegat Group Limited United States of America 100.00           100.00             

Delegat Europe Limited Sales and Distribution Delegat Limited United Kingdom 100.00           100.00             

Delegat (Singapore) Pte. Limited Sales and Distribution Delegat Group Limited Singapore 100.00           100.00             

Barossa Valley Estate Pty Limited Winemaking, Sales and Distribution Delegat Limited Australia 100.00           100.00             

Delegat Japan G.K. Brand Marketing Delegat Group Limited Japan 100.00           100.00             

Delegat (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd Sales and Distribution Delegat (Singapore) Pte. Limited China 100.00           100.00             

b) Key Management Personnel

Details relating to key management personnel, including remuneration paid, are included within Note 20.

c) Related Parties by Virtue of Share Ownership

The following Directors' hold the following number of Shares in the Parent. 2016 2015

Delegat Share Protection Trust (Jakov Delegat and Rosamari Delegat and Robert Wilton - Trustees) 66,857,142    66,857,142      

Robert Wilton 1,000,000      1,000,000        

Graeme Lord 51,050           51,050             

d) Transactions with Related Parties who have Significant Influence over Subsidiary Companies

Investments in controlled entities are as follows:  

During the year a total of $100,000 (2015: $100,000) was paid to Robert Wilton in his capacity as an independent consultant, under normal commercial terms and conditions.

Please also refer to the Disclosure of Directors' Interests at the back of this report.

The individuals above are considered related parties as a result of their shareholding or by virtue of being considered a member of key management. During the year a total of $65,000 (2015:

$65,000) was paid to Robert Wilton in his capacity as a non-executive Director. Rosamari Delegat received $65,000 (2015: $65,000) in her capacity as a non-executive Director during the year.

Ownership Interest %

a) Investment in Subsidiaries

Operating lease commitments include long-term land leases, which allow the Group to access prime viticultural land in the Marlborough and Hawke's Bay areas, and Barossa Valley. The leases

provide the Group the right of first refusal in the event that the land is put up for sale. Vineyard leases generally comprise an initial term of ten years with following rights of renewal which vary

depending on the vineyard. Leases are reviewed every five years and if required the market rate of rent is adjusted in relation to the market value of the underlying land plus a guaranteed rate of

return as determined by the five year government bond rate. Other operating lease commitments include short-term car, barrel and equipment leases.

During the period Delegat Australia Pty Limited paid a total of $16,000 (2015: $16,000) to Yaroona Pty Limited. The payments made to Yaroona Pty Limited were made in Peter Taylor's capacity

as Company Director and were under normal commercial terms and conditions. Peter Taylor was considered to be a related party by virtue of his ability to significantly influence the financial and

operating policies of a subsidiary company.

During the period Barossa Valley Estate Pty Limited paid a total of $123,000 (2015: $118,000) to Range Road Estate Pty Limited. The payments made to Range Road Estate Pty Limited were

made in Alan Hoey's capacity as Company Director and under normal terms and conditions. Alan Hoey was considered to be a related party by virtue of his ability to significantly influence the

financial and operating policies of a subsidiary company.

During the period Delegat (Singapore) Pte. Limited paid a total of $6,000 (2015: $6,000) to Camelot Trust Pte. Limited, a company in which a Director of Delegat (Singapore) Pte. Limited has an

interest. The payments made to Camelot Trust Pte. Limited are made in the Camelot Trust Pte. Limited's capacity as Company Director and under normal commercial terms and conditions.

All subsidiaries have a 30 June balance date except for Delegat (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd which has a 31 December balance date as required by law in China.

The estimated capital expenditure contracted for at 30 June 2016 but not provided for is $10,531,000 (2015: $43,065,000).
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20. Key Management Personnel

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

2016 2015

$000 $000

Short-term employee benefits 7,012             6,595               

Post-employment benefits (including defined contribution pension plan) 201                214                  

Share-based payments expense 5                    5                      
7,218             6,814               

21. Auditor's Remuneration

The auditor of Delegat Group Limited is Ernst & Young. Amounts received, or due and receivable, by Ernst & Young are as follows:

2016 2015

$000 $000

Assurance services

Audit of the financial statements 185                185                  

Non-assurance services

Tax compliance 89                  120                  
Total remuneration 274                305                  

22. Reconciliation of Profit for the Year with Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
2016 2015

$000 $000

Reported profit after tax 53,990           32,523             

Add/(deduct) items not involving cash flows

Fair value movement on biological assets (7,043)            (19,260)            

Amortisation of leases 251                202                  

Depreciation expense 11,275           12,346             

Other non-cash items (3,114)            2,010               

(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets (547)               238                  

Movement in derivative financial instruments (4,716)            11,562             

Movement in deferred tax assets 256                (157)                

Movement in deferred tax liabilities 8,683             1,155               

59,035           40,619             

Trade payables and accruals 1,451             7,103               

Trade and other receivables (804)               (9,120)             

Inventories (17,722)          (328)                

Income tax (2,943)            4,355               

(20,018)          2,010               

Capital purchases included within trade payables and inventories 3,434             (6,120)             

(16,584)          (4,110)             
Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 42,451           36,509             

Included in the definition of related parties are Key Management Personnel having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity either directly or

indirectly, including any Director. Management have assessed the composition of the Key Management and their compensation for the year ended 30 June is presented below:

Deduct/(add) items classified as investing and financing activities

Movement in working capital balances are as follows:

During the year the Group also paid $3,000 (2015: $Nil) to Shanghai LSC Certified Public Accountants Co. Limited for the audit of the local financial statements of Delegat (Shanghai) Trading Co. 

Limited.
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23. Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date

24. Earnings Per Share

The following reflects the earnings used in the calculation of the basic and fully diluted earnings per share.

2016 2015

a) Earnings Used in Calculating Earnings per Share

Profit for the year - basic and fully diluted ($000)            53,990              32,523 

b) Weighted Average Number of Shares

Weighted average number of shares - basic (000's)           101,130            101,080 

Weighted average number of shares - fully diluted (000's)           101,130            101,130 

c) Reported Earnings Per Share on statement of financial performance (expressed as cents per share)

 - Basic earnings per share              53.39                32.18 

 - Fully diluted earnings per share              53.39                32.16 

On 26 August 2016, the Directors of the Parent declared a fully imputed dividend of $12,136,000  (12.0 cents per Share) to be paid on 14 October 2016. 

On 4 July 2016, Delegat completed the purchase of land in the Wairau Valley, Marlborough for total consideration of $3,575,000.

In the prior year, the Shares issued under the Delegat Group Limited Employee Share Ownership Plan, as disclosed in Note 5, were excluded from the weighted average number of shares on issue

for the purpose of the basic earnings per share calculation because at the balance sheet date all conditions in relation to these shares were not met. They were included in the weighted average

number of shares on issue for the purpose of the fully diluted earnings per share calculation.    
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APPENDIX 7 – NZSX Listing Rules

Number of pages including this one

(Please provide any other relevant

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.2. For rights, NZSX Listing Rules 7.10.9 and 7.10.10.  details on additional pages)

For change to allotment, NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.1, a separate advice is required.

Full name

of Issuer

Name of officer authorised to Authority for event,

make this notice e.g. Directors' resolution

Contact phone Contact fax

number number Date

Nature of event Bonus If ticked, Rights Issue

Tick as appropriate Issue state whether: Taxable / Non Taxable Conversion Interest Renouncable

Rights Issue Capital Call Dividend If ticked, state Full

non-renouncable change x whether: Interim Year x Special DRP Applies

EXISTING securities affected by this If more than one security is affected by the event, use a separate form.

Description of the ISIN

class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Details of securities issued pursuant to this event If more than one class of security is to be issued, use a separate form for each class.

Description of the ISIN

class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Number of Securities to Minimum Ratio, e.g

be issued following event Entitlement   1   for    2   for

Conversion, Maturity, Call Treatment of Fractions

Payable or Exercise Date

Tick if provide an

pari passu OR explanation

Strike price per security for any issue in lieu or date of the

Strike Price available. ranking

Monies Associated with Event Dividend payable, Call payable, Exercise price, Conversion price, Redemption price, Application money.

Source of

Amount per security Payment

(does not include any excluded income)

Excluded income per security

(only applicable to listed PIEs)

Supplementary Amount per security

Currency dividend in dollars and cents

details -

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.7

Total monies

Taxation Amount per Security in Dollars and cents to six decimal places

In the case of a taxable bonus Resident Imputation Credits

issue state strike price Withholding Tax (Give details)

Foreign FDP Credits

Withholding Tax (Give details)

Timing (Refer Appendix 8 in the NZSX Listing Rules)

Record Date 5pm Application Date

For calculation of entitlements - Also, Call Payable, Dividend /

Interest Payable, Exercise Date,

Conversion Date. In the case

of applications this must be the

last business day of the week.

Notice Date Allotment Date

Entitlement letters, call notices, For the issue of new securities.

conversion notices mailed Must be within 5 business days

of application closing date.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Ex Date:

Commence Quoting Rights: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Rights 5pm:

Commence Quoting New Securities: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Old Security 5pm:

30 September, 2016 14 October 2016

NZD $0.021176

$12,135,623 Date Payable 14 October, 2016

$ $0.008333 $0.046667

$

In dollars and cents

$0.120

Enter N/A if not 

applicable

ORDINARY SHARES (DGL) NZDGLE0001S3

(09) 359 7310 (09) 359 7359 26 08 2016

EMAIL: announce@nzx.com

Notice of event affecting securities

DELEGAT GROUP LIMITED

Murray Annabell Directors' Resolution
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